GRANDVIEW CITY COUNCIL
REVISED REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2024

PLEASE NOTE: The maximum occupancy of the Councii Chambers is 49 individuais at one time. Access to exits
must be kept clear to ensure everyone in the Chambers can safely exit in the event of an emergency.

This meeting will be held in person and will also be available via teleconference.

REGULAR MEETING — 7:00 PM PAGE

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
2 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — Aaron Lopez, 5" grader at McClure Elementary School
3. APPROVE AGENDA
4 PRESENTATIONS
A, Safe Yakima Valley and Grandview Coalition — Katie Goodale, Community Coordinator 1

5. PUBLIC COMMENT - The public may address the Council on any topic whether on the agenda or not, except
those scheduled for public hearing. The public comment period is not an opportunity for dialogue with the Mayor
and Councilmembers, or for posing questions with the expectation of an immediate answer. Many questions require
an opportunity for information gathering and deliberation. For this reason, Council will accept comments, but will
not directly respond to comments, questions or concerns during public comment. If you would like to address the
Council, please step up to the microphone and give your name and address for the record. Your comments will be
limited to three minutes.

6. CONSENT AGENDA - items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on fogether by the Council, unless a
Councilmember requests that items be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted upon
separately. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will be placed under Unfinished and New Business.

A. Minutes of the November 26, 2024 Committee-of-the-Whole meeting 2-6
B. Minutes of the November 26, 2024 Council meeting 7-12
C. Payroll Check Nos. 14171-14194 in the amount of $25,229.10

D. Payroll Electronic Fund Transfers (EFT) Nos. 61478-61484 in the amount of $110,011.13

E. Payroll Direct Deposit 11/16/24-11/30/24 in the amount $160,200.70

F. Claim Check Nos. 130207-130276 in the amount of $422,413.86

G. Mosquito Control Board Reappointment Request — Mayor Pro Tem Bill Moore 13
H. Grandview Municipal Court Judge Appointments 14

7. ACTIVE AGENDA - items discussed at the 6:00 pm Committes-of-the-Whole meeting of an urgent or time
sensitive nature may be added to the active agenda pursuant to City Council Procedures Manual Section 3.18(c).

A. Resolution No. 2024-68 accepting the bid and authorizing the Grandview Herald as 15-17
the Official City Newspaper for the year 2025

B. Resolution No. 2024-69 accepting the bid from Talos Tactical for the surplus firearms 18

Page 1 of 2



10.

1.

C. Ordinance No. 2024-27 amending the City of Grandview 2025 non-union salary
schedule

D. Ordinance No. 2024-28 adopting the budget and confirming tax levies for revenue
to carry on the government for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2025

E. Resolution No. 2024-70 approving a Site Use Agreement between People For
People and the City of Grandview Community Center

F. Resolution No. 2024-71 authorizing the Mayor to sign a Service Agreement and
Clearing Agreement with Nayax LLC for the Nayax Cashless and Remote Monitoring
Solution for the Grandview Library

G. Ordinance No. 2024-29 establishing a debt service fund for repayment of Supporting
Investments in Economic Diversification (SIED) Loan on the Wine Country Road &
Higgins Way Improvements project

H. Resolution No. 2024-72 approving Task Order No. 2024-09 with HLA Engineering and
Land Surveying, Inc., for the Pappy's Landing Phase 2 Development Construction
Engineering

. Resolution No. 2024-73 approving Task Order No. 2024-10 with HLA Engineering and
Land Surveying, Inc., for the Splash Pad Improvements

J. Resolution No. 2024-74 approving Task Order No. 2024-11 with HLA Engineering and
Land Surveying, Inc., for the Willoughby Road Reconstruction

K. Resolution No. 2024-75 authorizing the Mayor to sign the Technical Assistance
Contract No. 010125GV with the Yakima Valley Conference of Governments

L. Resolution No. 2024-76 accepting the Request For Qualifications and Cost
Proposal for Event Planning and Execution and authorizing the Mayor to sign all
contract documents with Finn Styles Company

M. Resolution No. 2024-77 authorizing the Mayor to sign the Audiovisual Solution
Proposal with Avidex Industries, LLC for the Stage Pavilion Audio System
at the Childress Amphitheater

UNFINISHED AND NEW BUSINESS

A December 24, 2024 C.O.W. and Council Meeting Cancellations

CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND/OR STAFF REPORTS

MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS

ADJOURNMENT

Page 2 of 2

PAGE
19-20

21-22

23-29

30-40

41-42

43-45

46-51

52-57

58-60

61-67

68-89



The City of Grandview Committee-of-the-Whole and Regular Council Meetings scheduled for
Tuesday, December 10, 2024 at 6:00 pm and 7:00 pm will be held in person and will also be
available via teleconference.

Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.

Join Zoom Meeting

https.//usO6web.zoom.us/j/851352514987?pwd=rPBUFZrit8 Q9RcOLk8iN5aEqgsDral.Zk. 1
To join via phone. +1 253 215 8782

Meeting ID: 851 3525 1498

Passcode: 546030



Anita Palacios
L. ____________________________________________________________________________________

From: Katie Goodale <safedata@yakima.org>
sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2024 3:36 PM
To: Anita Palacios

Subject: Presenting to City Council

Follow Up Flag: Flag for follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

CAUTION: External Email

Dear Ms. Palacios,

I hope this message finds you well. | am writing to request to be added to the agenda for the upcoming
City Council meeting on December 12, 2024, to present the work and initiatives of Safe Yakima Valley
and the Grandview Coalition.

One recent highlight of our work that we would love to share is the success of the “Shreds and Meds”
event, which we hosted on October 26, 2024. This community event provided a safe and secure way for
residents to dispose of confidential documents and unused prescription medications. We were pleased
to see a strong turnout, with 143 People, 1300 pounds of paper shredded, and 31.5 pounds of
medication safely disposed of. We were also able to partner with the Yakima Health District to distribute
100 firearm lock boxes and 100 trigger locks. This initiative not only helped reduce the risk of identity
theft and substance misuse but also demonstrated the power of community collaboration to address
local public safety concerns.

In addition to this event, we would like to update the Council on other ongoing projects and discuss
potential future collaborations. We believe our work aligns closely with the City’s efforts to build a safer
and more resilient community, and we are eager to explore how we can further support these goals
together.

Please let me know if there are any steps or forms required to formalize this request. | look forward to the
opportunity to present and discuss cur work with the Council.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Warm Regards,

Katie Goodale
PFS Community
Coordinator

Sd ‘F (‘}’glil"'e‘g Safe Yakima Valley

Bulding Safe Communities Neighbor by Newghtor ggfiﬁ%—f;}ggl;igl:}aﬁ\;anev.org




GRANDVIEW CITY COUNCIL
COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 26, 2024
1. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Ashley Lara called the Committee-of-the-Whole (C.0.W.) meeting to order at 6:00 p.m., in
the Council Chambers at City Hall.

The meeting was held in person and was also available via teleconference.
2. ROLL CALL

Present in person: Mayor Ashley Lara, Councilmembers Steve Barrientes, David Diaz, Laura
Flores, Bill Moore (Mayor Pro Tem), Robert Ozuna, Javier Rodriguez and Joan Souders

Present via teleconference; None
Absent: None

Staff present: City Administrator Shane Fisher, City Attorney Quinn Plant, Assistant Police Chief
Seth Bailey and City Clerk Anita Palacios

3. PUBLIC COMMENT —~ None
4, NEW BUSINESS

A. Resolution accepting the bid and authorizing the Grandview Herald as the
Official City Newspaper for the year 2025

City Clerk Palacios explained that RCW 35.23.352(7) provides that bids were required to secure
the services of the official newspaper. Bids to serve as the Official City Newspaper for the year
2025 were opened on November 13, 2024. The City received one (1) bid from the Grandview
Herald. The bid was as follows:

Newspaper Type of Publication Rate (per column inch)
Grandview Herald  Legal Notices $7.50 (an increase of $.25 from 2024)
Dispiay Advertising $8.75 (no increase from 2024)

Discussion took place.

On motion by Councilmember Ozuna, second by Councilmember Moore, the C.O.W.
moved a resolution accepting the bid and authorizing the Grandview Herald as the Official
City Newspaper for the year 2025 to the December 10, 2024 regular Council meeting for
consideration.

Vote:
¢ Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
¢ Councilmember Diaz — Yes
o Councilmember Flores — Yes



Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting Minutes
November 26, 2024

Page 2
¢ Councilmember Moore — Yes
+ Councilmember Czuna — Yes
¢ Counciimember Rodriguez - Yes
¢ Councilmember Souders — Yes

B. Surplus Firearms Bid Award

Assistant Police Chief Bailey explained that on October 22, 2024, Council adopted Resolution
No. 2014-60 declaring firearms as surplus and authorizing the sale or trade of said firearms to a
federally licensed firearm dealer. Two (2) bids for the surplus firearms were received from
federally licensed firearm dealers on November 22, 2024. The bids were as follows:

Federally Licensed Firearm Dealer Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3 Lot4
Talos Tactical $1,700 $2,050 $2,050 [ $3,400
Tom Sutton $700 $900 $1000 $900

Discussion took place.

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Souders, the C.O.W.
moved the acceptance of the following surplus firearms bids to the December 10, 2024
regular Council meeting for consideration:

Lot 1 submitted by Talos Tactical in the amount of $ 1,700.

Lot 2 submitted by Talos Tactical in the amount of $ 2,050.

Lot 3 submitted by Talos Tactical in the amount of $ 2,050

Lot 4 submitted by Talos Tactical in the amount of $ 3,400

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Councilmember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez - Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes

C. Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign a 2025 Marketing Services
Proposal with Pixelsoft Films

City Administrator Fisher explained that the ARPA Committee appropriated $25,000 for marketing
materials to promote economic development. He presented a proposal from Pixelsoft for
Marketing Services in 2025. The scope of services was not set in stone and could be revised
based on City needs. The total cost for the services through December 31, 2025 was $24,800.00
which would be paid through the ARPA Fund.



Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting Minutes
November 26, 2024
Page 3

Discussion took place.

On motion by Councilmember Diaz, second by Councilmember Barrientes, the C.O.W.
moved a resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign a 2205 Marketing Services Proposal with
Pixelsoft Films to the November 26, 2024 regular Council meeting for consideration.

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Councilmember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna — Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders - Yes

D, Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign Change Order No. 2 with C&E

Trenching, LLC for the Old Inland Empire Highway (Welch) Sanitary Sewer
improvements

City Administrator Fisher explained that on February 22, 2024, City staff conducted a bid opening
for the Old Inland Empire Highway (Welch) Sanitary Sewer Improvements. A total of three (3)
bids were received with the low bid of $1,202,777.64, being offered by C&E Trenching, LLC, of
Pasco, WA. This low bid is approximately sixteen (16%) percent above the Engineer's Estimate
of $1,040,477.40. On March 12, 2024, City Council accepted the bid from C&E Trenching, LLC,
and authorized the Mayor to sign all contract documents with C&E Trenching to construct the OIE
(Welch) Sanitary Sewer Improvements. On August 21, 2024, the City discovered a sinkhole
caused by an undermined sanitary sewer segment on South Division Street. After initial repairs
to this segment, further investigation revealed extensive deterioration along the entire segment.
The proposed improvements included replacing two manholes and installing approximately 500
linear feet of new sewer pipe. Change Order No. 2 compensates the Contractor for emergency
sanitary sewer repairs completed on S. Division Street, extending the project completion time by
16 days. The repairs were executed through force account due to the urgent nature of the work.
Payment for this work was carefully documented and quantified under the force account
provisions of the contract, as directed by the Engineer.

Discussion took place.

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Souders, the C.O.W.
moved a resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign Change Order No. 2 with C&E Trenching,
LLC for the Old Inland Empire Highway (Welch) Sanitary Sewer Improvements to the
November 26, 2024 regular Council meeting for consideration.

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Councilmember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Counciimember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes



Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting Minutes
November 26, 2024
Page 4

 Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
¢ Councilmember Souders — Yes

E. Ordinance amending the City of Grandview 2025 non-union salary schedule

City Administrator Fisher explained that the 2025 preliminary budget included a 3.5% salary
increase for non-union employees.

Discussion took place.

On motion by Councilmember Diaz, second by Councilmember Moore, the C.O.W. moved
an ordinance amending the City of Grandview 2025 non-union salary schedule to the
December 10, 2024 regular Council meeting for consideration.

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Councilmember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — No
Councilmember Souders —- Yes

F. Ordinance adopting the budget and confirming tax levies for revenue to
carry on the government for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2025

City Administrator Fisher explained that during the months of September through November,
there were numerous staff reviews, budget discussions and City Council special meetings
regarding the 2025 preliminary budget.

Discussion took place.

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Rodriguez, the C.O.W.
moved an ordinance adopting the budget and confirming tax levies for revenue to carry on
the government for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2025 to the December 10, 2024
regular Council meeting for consideration.

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Councilmember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders - Yes



Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting Minutes
November 26, 2024
Page 5

5. CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND/OR STAFF REPORTS

RFQ & Costs Proposals for Event Planning and Execution — City Administrator Fisher reported
that the request for qualifications and costs proposals for event planning and execution at the
Childress Amphitheater were due on November 27, 2024. Selected vendors would be notified by
December 4, 2024.

Public Works Director Position — City Administrator Fisher reported that the Public Works Director
position would be reopened during the month of January, 2025.

Community Christmas Tree at Museum - City Administrator Fisher reported that the Public Works
Department would be assisting the Chamber of Commerce with the installation of the community
Christmas tree at the Museum.

Country Park Sound System — City Administrator Fisher reported that the City was still waiting for
the cost estimate for the Country Park sound system.

S-Year Strategic Plan ~ City Administrator Fisher reported that the 5-year strategic planning would
begin the first of 2025,

2025 AWC City Action Days — City Administrator Fisher reported that registrations and hotel
accommodations have been made for the 2025 AWC City Action Days on February 19 and 20,
2025.

6. MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS

Housing Affordability — Councilmember Souders expressed concerns with housing affordability in
manufactured home parks.

7. ADJOURNMENT

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Souders, the C.O.W.
meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m.

Mayor Ashley Lara Anita Palacios, City Clerk



GRANDVIEW CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 26, 2024
1. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Ashley Lara called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at
City Hall.

The meeting was held in person and was also available via teleconference.

Present in person: Mayor Lara and Councilmembers Steve Barrientes, David Diaz, Laura
Flores, Bill Moore (Mayor Pro Tem), Robert Ozuna, Javier Rodriguez and Joan Souders

Present via teleconference: None
Absent: None

Staff present. City Administrator Shane Fisher, City Attorney Quinn Plant, Fire Chief Pat
Mason, Deputy Fire Chief Del Whitmore and City Clerk Anita Palacios

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Luna Marquez, 1% grader at Smith Elementary School, led the pledge of allegiance.
3. APPROVE AGENDA

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Souders, Council
approved the November 26, 2024 regular meeting agenda as presented.

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Counciimember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore - Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders - Yes

4. PRESENTATIONS

A. Certificate of Extraordinary Achievement — GHS Boys State Cross
Country — Brendan Kramer

Mayor Lara presented Brendan Kramer with a Certificate of Extraordinary Achievement in
recognition of his outstanding accomplishments individually qualifying and competing at the
WIAA 2A State Cross Country Championship.



Regular Meeting Minutes
November 26, 2024
Page 2

B. Introduction of new Deputy Fire Chief Del Whitmore

Fire Chief Mason introduced newly promoted Deputy Fire Chief Del Whitmore.
5. PUBLIC COMMENT - None
6. CONSENT AGENDA

On motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Barrientes, Council
approved the Consent Agenda consisting of the following:

Minutes of the November 12, 2024 Committee-of-the-Whole meeting
Minutes of the November 12, 2024 Council meeting

Payroll Check Nos. 14158-14170 in the amount of $103,274.75

Payroll Electronic Fund Transfers (EFT) Nos. 61469-61473 in the amount
of $99,656.71

Payroll Direct Deposit 11/01/24-11/15/24 in the amount $149,647.64

Claim Check Nos. 130128-130206 in the amount of $1,247,881.37

nm oom»

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Councilmember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore - Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders ~ Yes

7. ACTIVE AGENDA

A. Public Hearing — 2025 Preliminary Budget

Mayor Lara opened the public hearing for the purpose of receiving comments on the 2025
Preliminary Budget by reading the public hearing procedure.

City Clerk Palacios indicated that there were no public comments received by mail.
Mayor Lara requested public comments. No public comments were received.

The public testimony portion of the hearing was declared closed and no further comments
were received.

B. Closed Record Public Hearing — Kang/Nazarene Church/Lange Rezone

Mayor Lara opened the closed record public hearing to consider the Kang/Nazarene
Church/Lange Rezone submitted by PLSA Engineering & Surveying, First Church of the
Nazarene and Gretchen Lange for Parcel Nos. 230914-41002, 230914-41005, 230914-44401,
230914-44004, 230914-44407 and 230914-41009 located on North Elm Street, Grandview,
Washington, by reading the public hearing procedure.

3



Regular Meeting Minutes
November 26, 2024
Page 3

There was no one in the audience who objected to her participation as Mayor or any of the
Councimembers’ participation in these proceedings. None of the Councilmembers had an
interest in this issue nor did any stand to gain or lose any financial benefit as a result of the
outcome of this hearing and all indicated they could hear and consider the issue in a fair and
objective manner.

The purpose of the hearing was for the Council to review the record and consider the pertinent
facts relating to this issue. No new public testimony was allowed.

City Clerk Palacios provided the following review of the record:

* The City received applications for a rezone submitted by applicants PLSA Engineering &
Surveying, First Church of the Nazarene and Gretchen Lange requesting a rezone of
Parcel Nos. 230914-41002, 230914-41005, 230914-44401, 230914-44004, 230914-
44407 and 230914-41009 located on North Elm Street, Grandview, Washington, from
AG Agricultural to R-2 Medium Low Density Residential.

» On October 9, 2024, the Hearing Examiner conducted an open record public hearing to
receive comments on the proposed rezone. A copy of the Hearing Examiner's
Recommendation dated October 23, 2024 was presented.

e Staff recommended Council accept the Hearing Examiner's recommendation that the
City Council approve the requested Rezone of Parcel Nos. 230914-41002, 230914-
41005, 230914-44401, 230914-44004, 230914-44407 and 230914-41009 from AG
Agricultural zoning district to the R-2 Medium Density Residential zoning district.

o Staff further recommended Council approve Ordinance No. 2024-24 changing the
zoning classification of certain lands and amending the zoning map of the City of
Grandview as requested by Moo Sung & Ran Young Kang, Grandview First Church of
the Nazarene and Maurice A. & Gretchen Lange for Parcel Nos. 230914-41002, 230914-
41005, 230914-44401, 230914-44004, 230914-44407 and 230914-41009 located on
North Elm Street, Grandview, Washington.

Council did not request clarification of the record and the public hearing was declared closed.

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Counciilmember Barrientes, Council
accepted the Hearing Examiner's recommendation that the City Council approve the
requested Rezone of Parcel Nos. 230914-41002, 230914-41005, 230914-44401, 230914-
44004, 230914-44407 and 230914-41009 from AG Agricultural zoning district to the R-2
Medium Density Residential zoning district.

C. Ordinance No. 2024-24 changing the zoning classification of certain
lands and amending the zoning map of the City of Grandview as
requested by Moo Sung & Ran Young Kang. Grandview First Church of

the Nazarene and Maurice A. & Gretchen Lange for Parcel Nos. 230914-
41002, 230914-41005, 230914-44401, 230914-44004, 230914-44407 and

230914-41009 located on North Elm Street, Grandview, Washington

This item was previously discussed at the closed record public hearing.



Regular Meeting Minutes
November 26, 2024
Page 4

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Souders, Council
approved Ordinance No. 2024-24 changing the zoning classification of certain lands
and amending the zoning map of the City of Grandview as requested by Moo Sung &
Ran Young Kang, Grandview First Church of the Nazarene and Maurice A. & Gretchen
Lange for Parcel Nos. 230914-41002, 230914-41005, 230914-44401, 230914-44004,
230914-44407 and 230914-41009 located on North EIm Street, Grandview, Washington.

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Councilmember Diaz — Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore - Yes
Councilmember Ozuna ~ Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes

D, Resolution No. 2024-64 authorizing the Mayor to sign an Interiocal
Agreement with the Yakima County District Court for Probation Services

This item was previously discussed at the November 12, 2024 C.O.W. meeting.

On motion by Councilmember Barrientes, second by Councilmember Ozuna, Council
approved Resolution No. 2024-64 authorizing the Mayor to sign an Interlocal
Agreement with the Yakima County District Court for Probation Services.

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Councilmember Diaz —- Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna — Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez - Yes
Councilmember Souders - Yes

E. Resolution No. 2024-65 authorizing the Mayor to sign a Public Defender
Agreement with the Law Office of Beck and Phillips, PLLC

This item was previously discussed at the November 12, 2024 C.O.W. meeting.

On motion by Councilmember Diaz, second by Councilmember Souders, Council
approved Resolution No. 2024-65 authorizing the Mayor to sign a Public Defender

Agreement with the Law Office of Beck and Phillips, PLLC.

Vote:
¢ Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
¢ Councilmember Diaz —~ Yes
¢ Councilmember Flores — Yes
e Councilmember Moore — Yes

10



Regular Meeting Minutes
November 26, 2024
Page 5

¢ Councilmember Ozuna — Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez - Yes
e Councilmember Souders — Yes

F. Ordinance No. 2024-25 amending Grandview Municipal Code Section
13.28.140 Imposition of delinquency charge — Shutoff as method of

enforcement
This item was previously discussed at the November 12, 2024 C.O.W. meeting.

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Ozuna, Council
approved Ordinance No. 2024-25 amending Grandview Municipal Code Section 13.28.140
Imposition of delinquency charge — Shutoff as method of enforcement.

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Councilmember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore - Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes

G. Ordinance No. 2024-26 amending the 2024 Annuai Budget

This item was previously discussed at the November 12, 2024 C.O.W. meeting.

On motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Souders, Council
approved Ordinance No. 2024-26 amending the 2024 Annual Budget.

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Councilmember Diaz — Yes
Councilmember Flores —~ Yes
Councilmember Moore - Yes
Councilmember Ozuna — Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes

H. Resolution No. 2024-66 authorizing the Mayor to sign a 2025 Marketing
Services Agreement with Pixelsoft Films

This item was previously discussed at the November 26, 2024 C.O.W. meeting.

On motion by Councilmember Ozuna, second by Councilmember Barrientes, Council
approved Resolution No. 2024-66 authorizing the Mayor to sign a 2025 Marketing
Services Agreement with Pixelsoft Films.



Regular Meeting Minutes
November 26, 2024
Page 6

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Councilmember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore - Yes
Councilmember Ozuna - Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes

e & & & & 9 @

l. Resolution No. 2024-67 authorizing the Mayor to sign Change Order No. 2

with C&E Trenching, LLC for the Old Inland Empire Highway {Welch)
Sanitary Sewer Improvements

This item was previously discussed at the November 26, 2024 C.O.W. meeting.

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Souders, Council
approved Resolution No. 2024-67 authorizing the Mayor to sign Change Order No. 2 with
C&E Trenching, LLC for the Old Inland Empire Highway (Welch) Sanitary Sewer
Improvements.

Vote:

Councilmember Barrientes — Yes
Councilmember Diaz - Yes
Councilmember Flores — Yes
Councilmember Moore — Yes
Councilmember Ozuna — Yes
Councilmember Rodriguez — Yes
Councilmember Souders — Yes

¢ & @ & & & @

8. UNFINISHED AND NEW BUSINESS - None

9. CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND/OR STAFF REPORTS
10. MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS — None
11. ADJOURNMENT

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Rodriguez, the Council
meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m.

Mayor Ashiey Lara Anita Palacios, City Clerk

12



Benton County Mosquito Control District

November 5, 2024

Mayor Ashley Lara RECEIVED
City of Grandview

207 West Second Street

Grandview, WA 98930 CITY OF GRANDVIEW

SUBJECT: Mosquito Control Board Reappointment Request
Dear Mayor Lara,

I am writing to inform you that the two-year term of Mr. Bill Moore as a Trustee on the Benton
County Mosquito Control Board will expire on December 31, 2024. Mr. Moore has expressed
interest in serving another two-year term.

Mr. Moore represents the City of Grandview well and has been an asset to the district during his
tenure. Therefore, I recommend that he be reappointed for another term beginning January 1, 2025,
and ending December 31, 2026. If that is agreeable to you, please send written notification of the
appointment as soon as possible.

Please feel free to contact my office by phone at (509) 510-8242 or by email at
Angela@MosquitoControl.org if you have any questions. Thank you for your attention to this
matter,

Sincerely,

Angela Beehler
District Manager

== —

Angela Beehler; District Manager Phone: (505967
4951 W. Van Giesen Street Fax: (509) §67-2

West Richland, WA 99353 www.MosquitoCdhtr:



CITY OF GRANDVIEW
AGENDA ITEM HISTORY/COMMENTARY

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
ITEM TITLE AGENDA NO.: Consent Agenda 6 (H)
Grandview Municipal Court Judge Appointments AGENDA DATE: December 10, 2024
DEPARTMENT o FUNDING CERTIFICATION (City Treasurer)
(If applicable)
Municipal Court

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR REVIEW

Anita Palacios, City Clerk Q L% ,

ITEM HISTORY (Previous council reviews, action related to this itern\,jénd other pertinent history)

RCW 3.50.040 requires that the City appoint a municipal judge or judges to preside over the Grandview
Municipal Court either every four years or when there is a change.

“ITEM COMMENTARY (Background, discussion, key points, recommendations, etc.) Please identify any or all
impacts this proposed action would have on the City budget, personnel resources, and/or residents.

Yakima County Courts has requested that the following judges be appointed effective January 13, 2025
through January 13, 2029 as Grandview Municipal Court judges:

Judge Donald Engel

Judge Gary Hintze

Judge Brian Sanderson
Judge Alfred Schweppe
Commissioner Kevin Eilmes

ACTION PROPOSED

Approve the appointments of Judge Donald Engel, Judge Gary Hintze, Judge Brian Sanderson, Judge Alfred
Schweppe and Commissioner Kevin Eilmes as Grandview Municipal Court Judges in compliance with RCW
3.50.040 effective January 13, 2025 through January 13, 2029,

14



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-68

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
ACCEPTING THE BID AND AUTHORIZING THE GRANDVIEW HERALD AS THE
OFFICIAL CITY NEWSPAPER FOR THE YEAR 2025

WHEREAS, RCW 35.23.352(7) requires that bids be called annually for the
publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of all notices or newspaper
publications required by law and that the contract be awarded to the lowest responsible
bidder; and,

WHEREAS, the City has solicited bids from qualified legal newspapers to serve as
the official newspaper of the City of Grandview for the year 2025; and,

WHEREAS, the City received one bid in response to such solicitation from the
Grandview Herald; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that the Grandview Herald is the
lowest responsible bidder;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON, as follows:

That the bid submitted by the Grandview Herald to serve as the official newspaper of
the City of Grandview for the year 2025, including the rate for legal notices of $7.50 per
column inch and display advertising of $8.75, all as set forth in the attached proposal, is
hereby approved and accepted, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all
documents necessary or appropriate to accomplish such transaction.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on December 10, 2024.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

15



RECEIVED

BID FORM
OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER
CITY OF GRANDVIEW
I’'We the undersigned, having read all requirements of this call for bids, together with all the
special provisions and specifications set forth herein, do agree in every particular, and will provide
the service as specified herein as follows:

Name of Newspaper: Valley Publishing/The Grandview Herald

Number of days per week newspaper is published: °ne days per week.
Size of column inch: 2" Number of characters in column inch: 256
Total circulation; 1,000 Total circulation for 98930 zip code: 1,000

Services and Rates.

Describe rate(s) to be charged to the City of Grandview for publications. Please describe all
rates to be charged, and note different rates, if any, for different types of publication (i.e., legal
notices, advertising, etc.). Please describe rate per column inch of publication:

Type of Publication Rate (per column inch)
Legal Notice $7.50
Display Advertising $8.75

NOTE: Rates must not exceed the national advertising rate as defined in RCW 65.16.091.
Bidder's Name: Valley Publishing/The Grandview Herald

Address (Office of Publication): 308 Division St.

Mailing Address: Sa8me as above

Telephone Number: (509) 882-3712 Email: editor@thegrandviewherald.com
Signature of Authorized Official: _\ ) cebgaa o A\ 3D 0y
Print Name: Victoria Walker Title of Official: GM/Managing Editor

Official Newspaper Bid - Page 3

16



Are there any charges, surcharges, taxes or other fees in addition to the above-described
rates? If so, please describe:

None

Z. If the City of Grandview desires publication of an item on a particular date, how much lead
time is reguired by the bidder?

8:30 am Tuesday prior to publication.

3. Please describe the services to be provided by bidder to the City of Grandview, together
with any other information which bidder feels makes its newspaper the best choice for the
Official Newspaper of the City of Grandview:

It has been our pieasure to be representatives of the City of Grandview in 2024.

We have been in the Grandview community for over 100 years.

We pledge to continue to work with the community to bring current, up to date Grandview
hometown news. Our focus is Grandview businesses, development, education, and city news.
The Herald and its staff will continue to work hard for the city and our hometown.

Official Newspaper Bid - Page 4

17



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-69

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
ACCEPTING THE BID FROM TALOS TACTICAL FOR THE SURPLUS FIREARMS

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2024-60 on October 22, 2024
declaring firearms as surplus and authorizing the sale or trade of said firearms to a federally
licensed firearms dealer; and,

WHEREAS, the City received two bids in response to such solicitation from Talos
Tactical and Tom Sutton; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that the Talos Tactical is the
highest bidder;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON, as follows:

That the following bids submitted by Talos Tactical:

* Lot 1 submitted by Talos Tactical in the amount of $ 1,700.
¢ Lot 2 submitted by Talos Tactical in the amount of $ 2,050,
Lot 3 submitted by Talos Tactical in the amount of $ 2,050
¢ Lot 4 submitted by Talos Tactical in the amount of $ 3,400

are hereby approved and accepted, and the Mayor and/or Police Chief are hereby
authorized to execute any and all documents necessary or appropriate to accomplish such
transaction.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on December 10, 2024,

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

18



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-27

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
AMENDING THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW 2025 NON-UNION SALARY SCHEDULE

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Grandview, Washington has adopted
a budget for 2025; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council determined during the budget process that a 3.5%
general salary increase for all non-union employees be allocated and included on the
monthly salary matrix as an integral part thereof;

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW,
WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The City of Grandview 2025 Non-Union Monthly Salary Schedule is
hereby amended to include the salary increases attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and
incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after its
passage and publication as required by law.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at a special
meeting on December 10, 2024.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

PUBLISHED: 12/11/24
EFFECTIVE: 12/16/24

19



EXHIBIT 1

CITY OF GRANDVIEW
2025 NON-UNION MONTHLY SALARY SCHEDULE
Position Monthly Monthly
Minimum Maximum
City Administrator $8,922 $13,388
Police Chief $7,737 $11,604
Fire Chief $7,737 $11,604
Public Works Director $7.497 $11,243
City Treasurer $7,282 $11,085
City Clerk/Human Resource Assistant $6,917 $10,374
Assistant Police Chief $6,776 $10,159
Deputy Fire Chief $6,776 $10,159
Assistant Public Works Director $5,897 $8,838
WWTP Superintendent $5,841 $8,760
Fire Captain $5,694 $8,541
Parks & Recreation Director $5,462 $8,313
Public Works Foreman $4,797 $7.196
Library Director $4,794 $7.192
Public Works Assistant $3,993 $5,991
Accounting Clerk $3,727 $5,592
Utility Billing Clerk $3,520 $5,358
Library Associate $3,351 $5,102
Confidential Police Admin Clerk $3,192 $4.,858
Public Works Office Clerk $3,192 $4,858
Receptionist $3,192 $4,858

20



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-28

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
ADOPTING THE BUDGET AND CONFIRMING TAX LEVIES
FOR REVENUE TO CARRY ON THE GOVERNMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2025

WHEREAS, the City Clerk did publish notice that the Council of the City of
Grandview, Washington, would meet on the 26! day of November, 2024, at 7:00 p.m., in
the Council Chambers of the City Hall of said City for the purpose of making and adopting
the budget for the fiscal year 2025, and confirming a tax levy based upon the same fiscal
year, and giving taxpayers within the limits of said City an opportunity to be heard upon
said budget; and

WHEREAS, said City Council did meet at said time and place and did then consider
the matter of said proposed budget and tax levy, no objections to the same having been
filed with the City Clerk, and no persons appearing to make objections to the same, the
Council concluded that the budget was in accord with the needs of the citizens of
Grandview; and

WHEREAS, said proposed budget does not exceed the lawful limits of taxation
allowed by law to be levied on the property of the City of Grandview for the purposes set
forth in said budget, being all necessary to carry on the government of said City during said
period,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON, as follows:

SECTION I. That the City Council of the City of Grandview hereby adopts by
reference the 2025 Annual Budget, which is on file in the Office of the City Clerk of
Grandview. That required expenditures for the various departments and needs and
operation of government of the City of Grandview, Washington, for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2025, are fixed in the following amounts, to-wit:

RECAPITULATION -- ALL FUNDS

Beginning Ending

Fund Balance Revenue Expenditures Balance
Current Expense 590,805 7,334,700 7,822,075 103,430
American Rescue Plan Act 239,840 0 239,840 0
Law & Justice Tax 210,030 436,500 600,100 46,430
Street 394,860 1,676,150 1,885,740 185,270
Transportation Benefit District 249,400 206,500 160,000 295,900
Cemetery 186,355 233,150 342,910 76,595
SIED Loan - Euclid/WCR 15 23,300 23,300 15
SIED Loan - WCR/McCreadie 70 18,730 18,730 70
SIED Loan — WCR/Higgins 0 27,600 27,600 0

ORDINANCE ADOPTING 2025 BUDGET PAGE 1 2 1



Capital Improvements

NW Grandview Infrastructure
EMS

Water

Sewer

Irrigation

Solid Waste

Equipment Rental

Total

721,460 320,000 503,050 538,410
900,000 5,650,000 6,550,000 0
251,100 568,550 584,520 235,130
8,787,695 9,682,400 10,122,540 8,347,455
7,502,610 5,847,700 5,479,580 7,870,730
49,100 663,500 682,350 30,250
413,840 1,403,530 1,658,750 258,620
1,414,650 606,000 706,260 1,313,390
21,911,730 34,697,310 37,307,345 19,301,695

SECTION il. That a regular levy of $1,985,000 levied upon the taxable real and
personal property situated within the City of Grandview, taxable under the laws of the State
of Washington as City taxes, as 2025 taxes, as affixed by Ordinance No. 2024-17 is hereby
affirmed and said amount shall be appropriated.

SECTION lll. The City Clerk is hereby instructed to forthwith certify said budget and
tax levy to the County Assessor of Yakima County, Washington, for the purpose of having
said taxes extended on the tax roll as provided by law, and said assessor is hereby

authorized to extend said taxes accordingly.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on December 10, 2024,

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CITY ATTORNEY

PUBLISH: 12/11/24
EFFECTIVE: 12/16/24

ORDINANCE ADOPTING 2025 BUDGET

MAYOR

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

PAGE 2 2 2



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-70

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
APPROVING A SITE USE AGREEMENT BETWEEN PEOPLE FOR PEOPLE
AND THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW COMMUNITY CENTER

WHEREAS, People for People Senior Nutrition Program provides food and
nutrition services to area senior citizens; and,

WHEREAS, People for People Senior Nutrition Program provides these services
at the Grandview Community Center; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Grandview and People For People wish to enter into a
Site Use Agreement; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, AS FOLLOWS:

The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the Site Use Agreement between People For
People and the City of Grandview in the form as is attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on December 10, 2024,

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

23



SITE USE AGREEMENT
Between
People For People
and
City of Grandview
Grandview Community Center

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between, City of Grandview (hereinafter
City), and People For People, a Washington nonprofit corporation.

WHEREAS, People For People Senior Nutrition Program provides food and nutrition services to
senior citizens, and

WHEREAS, People For People Senior Nutrition Program desires to provide these services at the
Grandview Community Center, whose address is 812 Wallace Way, Grandview, Washington, 98930 in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and agreements set
forth herein it is agreed by and between the City and People For People as follows:

1. People For People:
a. Shall prepare and serve food services to senior citizens at the Grandview Community

Center, as contracted by the City, through congregate meals as well as preparing and
packaging meals for home delivery to homebound seniors.

b. Shall use the kitchen, equipment and facilities generally between 5:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.,
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday, except for Holidays and except
when such use is preempted by the City pursuant to paragraph 2(b) below.

c. Shallleave the kitchen, kitchen facilities/equipment, dishes, glassware, and utensils in a
clean and orderly condition. People For People assumes all responsibility for the
cleaning of the kitchen and dining areas for each day that People For People uses the
facility.

d. Upon the loss, destruction, or damage to any property at the Grandview Community
Center in connection with its food service operations, People For People shall notify the
City thereof and shall take all reasonable steps to protect that property from further
damage. Furthermore, People For People assumes all responsibility for repairing any
equipment, fixtures, or furnishings broken or damaged in the facility as a result of its
food service operations.

| 24



Shall request permission in advance to use the said facilities and equipment in the event
such use is needed outside the said time period.

Shall plan and carry out the operation of the meal site without aid or intervention from
the City.

2. The City:

a.

Shall provide People For People the use of facilities, equipment, and space for the
preparation and serving of meals for the Senior Nutrition program, as contracted by the
City, generally from 5:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m., Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday
and Friday, except for Holidays and when such use is preempted by the City pursuant to
paragraph 2(b) below.

Shall notify People For People at least five (5) business days in advance if the kitchen or
dining areas are to be preempted for other use.

Reserves the right to schedule classes and other activities in the Grandview Community
Center. The City will make reasonable efforts to ensure that such classes and activities
do not interfere with People For People’s operations and services.

Shall provide an annual Fire and Life Safety Survey to be performed by the local fire
department.

Shall provide an annual Health Inspection of the kitchen and serving area as mandated
by State regulation. The Yakima Health District shall perform the inspection.

Shall assure that when the facilities are used by other than People For People’s Senior
Nutrition program, the kitchen and other facilities have been properly cleaned prior to
use by the Senior Nutrition program.

3. Consideration:

a.

b.

As consideration for the food services provided pursuant to this Agreement, People For
People agrees to pay the City a base minimum of $500.00 per month starting January 1,
2025,

The City will renegotiate with People For People the monthly base minimum, should the
City determine that $500.00 per month does not cover the increased utilities costs
attributable to People For People’s food preparation operations and services.

4. Amendments;
This Agreement contains all terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No change or
addition to this Agreement shall be valid or binding upon either party unless such change or
addition is in writing and executed by both parties.

25



5.

7.

9.

Term ement:
The term of this Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2025 or as mutually scheduled and
shall end on December 31, 2025,

Taxes and Assessments:

People For People shall be solely responsible for compensating its employees and for paying all
related taxes, deductions, and assessments, including but not limited to, federal income tax,
FICA, soclal security tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial Injury, and other
deductions from income which may be required by law or assessed against either party as a
result of this Agreement.

Insurance:

People For People understands and acknowledges that the City does not provide
comprehensive liability insurance coverage for the benefit of People For People, including its
officials, officers, agents, and employees. People For People shall maintain a policy of
comprehensive liability insurance with combined single limit coverage of at least $5,000,000 for
the duration of this Agreement. The policy shall provide coverage for all activities conducted by
People For People at the Grandview Community Center. People For People shall provide the
City with a certificate of insurance or insurance binder evidencing that said insurance is in
effect. People For People Is required to provide 30 days notice of cancellation of such

insurance and provide proof of continued coverage.

Non-Discrimination:

With regard to the provision of food services under this Agreement, People For People and the
City shall not illegally discriminate against any person on the grounds of race, creed, color,
religion, national origin, political affiliation, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, age, or the
presence of any sensory, mental, or physical handicap.

indemnification and Hold Harmless:

People For People shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City, and its elected officials,
officers, employees, and agents from and against any and all suits, actions, claims liability,
damages, judgments, costs and expenses {including reasonable attorney’s fees) which result
from or arise out of the sole negligence of People For People, its elected officials, officers,
employees, and agents in connection with or incidental to the performance or non-
performance of People For People’s services, duties and obligations under this Agreement.

The City agrees to hold harmless, indemnify, and defend People For People, its elected officials,
officers, employees and agents from and against any and all suits, actions, claims, liability,
damages, judgments, costs and expenses {including reasonable attorney’s fees) which resuit
from or arise out of the sole negligence of the City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and
agents in connection with or incidental to the performance or non-performance of the City’s
services, duties and obligations under this Agreement.

26



In the event that the officlals, officers, agents, and/or employees of both Peaple For People and
the City are negligent, each party shall be liable for its contributory share of negligence for any
resulting suits, actions, claims, liability, damages, judgments, costs and expenses (including any
reasonable attorney’s fees).

Nothing contained in this Section, or this Agreement shall be construed to create a right of
indemnification in any third party.

People For People hereby releases the City, its elected and appointed officials, employees and
volunteers and others working on behalf of the City from any and all liability or responsibility to
People For People or anyone claiming through or under People For People by way of
subrogation or otherwise, for any loss, expense or damage, even if said loss, expense or
damage is caused by the fault or negligence of the City, its elected or appointed officials,
employees or volunteers, except to the extent that the City has an indemnification obligation to
People For People under this paragraph 9.

Solely for the purposes of its obligations under this Agreement, each party specifically waives
any immunity that may be granted under the Washington State Industrial Insurance Act, Title
51, Revised Code of Washington, for any claims by its employees against the other for bodily
injuries or death sustained while performing services hereunder. Further, the indemnification
obligations of either party to the other shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the
amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable to or for any third party under
Worker’s Compensation Acts, Disability Benefit Acts, or other benefit acts; provided, that each
party’s wavier of immunity by this provision shall extend only to claims by one party against the
other and shall not include or extend to any claims by either party’s employees directly against
the employer party.

This paragraph nine {9) shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

10. Assignment:
This Agreement, or any interest herein, or claim hereunder, shall not be assigned or transferred

in whole or in part by the City to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of
People For People. In the event that such prior written consent to an assignment is granted,
then the assignee shall assume all duties, obligations, and liabilities of the City as stated herein.

This Agreement, or any interest herein, or claim hereunder, shall not be assigned or transferred
in whole or in part by People For People to any other person or entity without the prior written
consent of the City. In the event that such prior written consent to an assignment is granted,
then the assignee shall assume all duties, obligations, and liabilities of People For People as
stated herein.

27



11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

Walver of Breach:
The waiver by People For People or the City of the breach of any provision of this Agreement by

the other party shall not operate or be construed as a walver of any subsequent breach by
either party or prevent either party thereafter enforcing any such provision.

Severability:

If any portion of this Agreement is changed per mutual agreement or any portion is held invalid;
the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Integration:
This Agreement sets forth all the terms, conditions, and agreements of the parties relative to

the subject matter hereof and supersedes any and all such former agreements which are
hereby declared terminated and of no further force and effect upon the execution and delivery
hereof. There are no terms, conditions, or agreements with respect thereto, except as herein
provided and no amendment or madification of this Agreement shall be effective unless
reduced to writing and executed by the parties.

Termination:
Either party may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, by giving the other party

thirty (30) days advance written notice of termination.

Notices:
Unless stated otherwise, herein, all notices and demands shall be in writing and sent or hand
delivered to the parties to their addresses as follows:

THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW Shane Fisher, City Administrator
City of Grandview
207 W. 2" Street
Grandview, WA 98930
(509) 882-9200

PEOPLE FOR PEOPLE: Madelyn Carison, CEO
People For People
304 W, Lincoln Avenue
Yakima, WA 98902
(509) 248-6726

Notices and/or demands shall be sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or hand
delivered. Such notices shall be deemed effective at the time mailed or hand delivered at the
address specified above. Each party shall provide written notification within 15 calendar days of
change of address.

28



16. Payment:
Rent payments will be mailed to the following address:

City of Grandview
Parks and Recreation Department
207 W. 2" Street
Grandview, WA 98930

17. Governing Law:
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of

Washington,

18. Venue:
The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall lie in the Superior Court
of Washington, Yakima County.

THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW PEOPLE FOR PEOPLE, A Washington
Nonprofit Corporation

By: By:
Ashley Lara, Mayor Madelyn Gaflson, CEQ
Date: Date: /R-3- 00«
]

29



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-71

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A SERVICE AGREEMENT AND CLEARING
AGREEMENT WITH NAYAX LLC FOR THE NAYAX CASHLESS AND REMOTE
MONITORING SOLUTION FOR THE GRANDVIEW LIBRARY

WHEREAS, the City wishes to enter into a Service Agreement and Clearing
Agreement with Nayax LLC for the Nayax Cashless and Remote Monitoring Solution for
the Grandview Library,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, AS FOLLOWS:

The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign a Service Agreement and Clearing Agreement
with Nayax LLC for the Nayax Cashless and Remote Monitoring Solution for the
Grandview Library, in the form as is attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on December 10, 2024.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

30



i

o

NAYAX

Attanding te the Unnitancdad

Welcome to Nayax

Dear Valued Nayax Customer,

We want to thank you for choosing and implementing the Nayax Cashles:, and Remote Maonitoring Solution!
This solution will allow you to accept the majority of major credit cards and debit cards, mobile payments
and payments using Nayax’s own mobile app MONYX via your card reacer. You will also have availability to
a powerful and innovative bhack-office cloud based system to analyze, monitor and manage all levels of your
operations. Our goal is to provide you with a smooth and seamiess implementation.

Attached are the following documents that will need to be completed and returned back to us.

1. Nayax Service Agreement (Needs to be executed for new customers.)

2. Nayax Clearing Agreement (Needs to be executed if you are using: Nayax as the merchant
provider for your cashless transactions. Disregard if you will be using your own processor.)

3. Schedule 1 (Nayax will pre-fill FEES and TERMS section. Other into necds to be compieted
and updated when there is a change.)

4. Schedule 2 (Needs to be executed if you are using Nayax as the nicrchant provider for your
cashless transactions. Disregard if you will be using your own proces=or.}

5. Include a copy of a voided check or something from the bank verifying the account and
routing number and a copy of a government issued photo identification which needs to be
included if we are merchant of record. {If you are a government agency you do not need to
submit a government issued 1D)

For new customers, once your cquipment is shipped you will receive an <mail that provides your log in
credentials to the Nayax cloud base system.

Please return these documents to your TBS representative via email at orders@tbsit360.com; phone
630-537-1370, fax 630-537-1369

We look forward to beginning our joint partnership together, which will heip to grow your business.
Best Regards,
The Nayax Team

Nayax = Executive Plaza 1, 11350 McCormick Rd, Ste 1004, Hunt Valley MD, 21031 410-666-3800 us@naggx.;;na 1



Fwavx e 0B

i

NAYAX Service Agreement

The “Customer” ~

1. Parties and Purpose. Nayax LLC ("NAYAX") hereby agrees to sell to the Customer the NAYAX Unit (as defined below) and
to provide to the Customer, network services (“NAYAX Service”} utilizing NAYAX unique telemetry and cellular activated
communications network solely in connection with the Customer’s automated machine equipment that is equipped with
a NAYAX unit or NAYAX AP (such unit, a “NAYAX Unit”) enabled to connect to NAYAX's Central Server. This Service
Agreement covers the sale of the NAYAX Unit (if applicable) and the provision of the NAYAX Service. This Service
Agreement shall not govern credit card clearing services which are optional and may be provided subject to Customer’
execution of a separate clearing agreement, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A hereto, and for an additional fee. If
the Customer has purchased the NAYAX Unit from either a reseller or other agent of NAYAX or from NAYAX directly, the
terms and conditions of this Agreement will apply and govern regarding this NAYAX Unit.

2. The NAYAX Services. NAYAX hereby grants the Customer, during the term of this Agreement, a non-exclusive, personal,
non-transferable and non-sub licensable right and license to access and use the NAYAX Service solely in connection with
and together with the NAYAX Unit. The NAYAX Service (through the NAYAX system and the NAYAXvend web
management tools) provides both (a) information and management abilities, including: machine status, malfunctions
and inventory management, on line transactions, alerts, pricing updates, web marketing tool and (b} detailed reports
regarding sales by machine operation, by machine, information regarding total sales and break down for periods,
detailed transaction report and cumulative transactions reports, including DEX counters reports (all the reports are based
on machine level of software and protocol} and cash accountability.

3. Fees and Payments. In consideration for the NAYAX Unit and the NAYAX Service, the Customer shall pay Nayax the fees
set forth in Schedule 1 according to the payment terms set forth therein. NAYAX may offset any such amount from the
net amounts due to the Customer for any reason including but not limited to any amounts due to the Customer if
NAYAX also handies clearing services for the Customer.

4. Due Payment - If the Customer fails to pay NAYAX any payment by such date on which it is due, it shall pay interest
on any overdue amount from the due date until payment is made in full at a rate of 6% per year compounded
monthly, or if less, the greatest amount allowed by law. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties in writing, all
payments under this Agreement shall be made in US Dollars. NAYAX reserves the right to offset any such amounts
due to it from the Customer from any amounts due by it to the Customer, if any.

5. Availability of Service. Customer acknowledges that NAYAX relies on third party providers in the delivery of its services,
including, but not limited to, processing service providers wireless data network providers. Cellular radio service provided
by third parties is available only when within the operating range of cellular systems, and cellular service is subject to
transmissions limitations and dropped or interrupted transmissions. Cellular service may be temporarity refused, limited,
interrupted, or curtailed due to government regulations or orders, atmospheric and/or topographical conditions and
cellular system modifications, repairs and upgrades. In addition, the Customer acknowledges that provision of the NAYAX
Services may depend on factors beyond NAYAX's control, including but not limited to factors affecting the operation of
Public Systems (i.e. telecommunication systems run by public telecommunication operators or internet service providers
which may be accessed by cellular data network, ISDN, IP, analogue line or other transmission types) and Banking
Systems (i.e. banking, financial institution or other similar bodies). NAYAX is and shall not be obliged to provide the
NAYAX Services where such factors prevent it. Furthermore, the Customer agrees that from time to time, NAYAX, the
third party provider for the network, and/or other third parties may perform routine maintenance or emergency
maintenance which could cause some NAYAX Services not to function partially or entirely, during the performance of
such maintenance, NAYAX shall not be liable for any such failure to function. The Customer agrees that NAYAX shall not
be liable for, and to defend, indemnify and hold NAYAX, its affiliates, directors, officers, employees, agents, and assigns
harmless for any losses, damages, or business interruptions sustained as a result of factors outside of NAYAX's control
and interruptions caused routine or emergency maintenance or by third party providers, including, but not limited to its
wireless data network providers and processing service providers.

Nayax Executive Plaza 1, 11350 McCormick Rd, Ste 1004, Hunt Valley MD, 21031 410-666-3800 U‘SEM&‘S 2



NAYAX

Attanding to the Unatlondod

6. NAYAX Unit Warranty. NAYAX warrants that for a period of twelve (12) months from delivery {the “Warranty Period”),
the NAYAX Unit shall be free from defects in material and workmanship. NAYAX does not warrant that the use of the
NAYAX Unit will be uninterrupted or error-free. NAYAX's sole obligation towards the Customer and Customer's exclusive
remedy for any failure of the NAYAX Unit to perform as warranted, is the correction or replacement, at NAYAX's option,
of the nonconforming NAYAX Unit; provided, that the Customer informs Nayax in writing, within the Warranty Period of
the defect, malfunction or nonconformity. The foregoing warranty shall not apply to disposal materials and to repair,
damages, malfunction or failures, resulting from/ to NAYAX Unit: (i) use of the NAYAX Unit in a manner for which it was
not intended; (ii) the defects or malfunctions caused by alteration or modification to the NAYAX Unit without NAYAX's
prior written approval; {iii) defects or malfunctions caused by improper service or repair of the NAYAX Unit , by anyone
other than NAYAX; (iv) defects or malfunctions which do not adversely affect the ability of the NAYAX Unit to perform
its usual designated function; (v) abuse or negligence by the Customer; or {vi) any other cause beyond NAYAX’s control.
The warranties contained in this section 6, are exclusive, and are in lieu of all other warranties, express or implied,
including, without limitation, any implied warranty of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, title, or arising by
a course of dealing or usage of trade. This section does not limit, and is without prejudice to, the provisions of Section 7
below.

7. Data Protection. NAYAX complies and will comply with the PCi (Payment Card Industry) Data Security standard. NAYAX
may use the data from the Customer’s NAYAX service, which does not identify the Customer or the specific location of
the machine, solely for internal statistical purposes.

8. Intellectual Property. The Customer acknowledges that NAYAX, its affiliated parties, and/or licensors, and third
party suppliers own the intellectual property rights in the services being provided hereunder and in and to the NAYAX
Units, the NAYAX cashless payment platform and all hardware and software in or associated with any of the
aforesaid, including but not limited to any and all trade and service marks, inventions, patents, copyrights, design
rights (whether registered or unregistered), data base rights, and all other intellectual property rights subsisting
anywhere in the world. The Customer shall take no action nor allow any action to be taken in contravention of any
such rights.

9. Limitation on Liability. In no event shall NAYAX, its affiliates and agents be liable for any punitive, incidental, or
consequential damages or any damages for loss of profits, business interruption, loss of information, or pecuniary loss,
even if NAYAX, its affiliates or agents has been advised of the possibility of such damages. The total liability of NAYAX to
the Customer in any calendar year shall not exceed (a) the payments made to NAYAX by the Customer under this
Agreement in the calendar year in which such liability arose, {b) the applicable insurance policy limit, if such claim or loss
is covered by insurance.

10. Remuneration. To the extent allowed by law, the County agrees that NAYAX shall not be Jiable for ctaims, demands,
causes of action, obligations, liabilities, expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees), damages, or suits shown to
be caused by an act or omission of the Customer, its employees and/or agents, including, but not limited to, the
operation and management of the NAYAX Unit and the NAYAX service.

11. Term and Termination. The term of this Agreement and the NAYAX Services shalt be for a period of twelve (12) months
from the later of the date of signature of this Agreement by NAYAX or the Customer (the “Hnitial Term”), and shall renew
automatically for successive twelve (12) month periods {each a "Renewal Term”) unless either party provides notice of
not less than thirty (30} days prior to any such Renewal Term, Notwithstanding the above, and without derogating from
any other of its rights hereunder or pursuant to law, NAYAX may terminate this Agreement and the NAYAX Services at
any time, without liability therefor by providing no less than 30 days written notice, and either party may terminate this
Agreement and the NAYAX Services by notice in writing not less than fifteen (15) days after notice of a material breach
which has not been remedied during such fifteen (15) day period. Without derogating from the above, in the event of
any breach by the Customer of any of its obligations hereunder, or in the event of any requirement of relevant law, or in
the event of any force majeure or other event due to which NAYAX, in its sole discretion determines the necessity of
doing so, NAYAX may suspend providing the NAYAX Services hereunder for such period as may be necessary in NAYAX's
sole opinion. In the event that NAYAX has suspended the provision of the NAYAX Services for more than thirty (30) days,
other than due to breach of this Agreement by the Customer or due to any other fault of the Customer, Customer may
terminate this Agreement on written notice.

12. No Warranties. Except to the extent as may be otherwise expressly provided herein, all warranties, conditions,

terms, undertakings and representations of any kind whatsoever, express or implied, whether by statute, common

Nayax Executive Plaza 1, 11350 McCormick Rd, Ste 1004, Hunt Valley MD, 21031 = 410-666-3800  us ax.



NAYAX

Atlonding to tho Unattondaod

law or otherwise, in respect of the services being provided hereunder, are hereby excluded by NAYAX to the fullest
extent permitted by law and NAYAX shall have no other obligation, duty or liability whatsoever in contract, tort,
statute or otherwise to the Customer. Without prejudice to the generality of the aforesaid, NAYAX specifically
disclaims the implied warranties of merchantability, satisfactory quality and fitness for a particular purpose.
13.Validity, Choice of Law and Venue. Should any part of this Agreement, for any reason, be declared invalid, then only
such portion shall be invalid without invalidating or affecting the remaining provisions of the Agreement,

14. Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given by either party hereto pursuant to this Agreement shall be in
writing and addressed to the other party at its registered office or place of business, or such other address as may
have been notified by one party to the other. Without derogating from the above, NAYAX may provide notice to
such person who has signed the Customer Declaration attached to this Agreement,

15.General, This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the parties with respect to
the subject matter hereof, and shall supersede any and all other communications, understandings, representations
and agreements. Except as otherwise expressly stated herein, nothing in this Agreement confers any rights on any
third parties. The Customer may not assign, novate, transfer, charge or otherwise deal with the benefit or the burden
of this Agreement. NAYAX may assign, novate, transfer, sub-contract, charge or otherwise deal this Agreement
and/or any of its rights and/or obligations hereunder at any time without consent of the Customer.

SIGNATURE PRINTED NAME DATE TITLE

Nayax = Executive Plaza 1, 11350 McCormick Rd, Ste 1004, Hunt Valley MD, 21031  410-666-3800 g;@rmﬂ% 4



NAYAX

Attanding to tha Unatlendaed

F

1

Welcome to Nayax

Dear Valued Nayax Customer,

Congratulations on implementing the Nayax Cashless and Remote Monitoring Solution! This solution will
allow you to accept the majority of major credit cards and debit cards on your card reader. Our goal is to
provide you with a smooth and seamless implementation. Your funds arc transferred via EFT/ACH within
two weeks after we have received a completed copy of the attached Schiocuie 2 “Direct Deposit (ACH)
Agreement Form” and a voided check.

Deposits are made every Friday for cashless sales from the previous Fric.iy to Thursday period, net the
related processing fee and monthly service fee, when applicable. A reimbursement statement reflecting
these details will be emailed to you by the following Monday. If your noi sales are less than S5, the balance
will be carried over to the following period,

The Nayax monthly service fees will be deducted from the second depoit of the month. The related
monthly service fee invoice will be sent to you for your records, but no action will be required. All
hardware sales are payable by check or credit card, kept on file, depencling on which payment terms have
been selected on the attached Schedule 1 “Fee Agreement Form”.

Please return these documents to your TBS representative via email at orders@tbsit360.com: phone
630-537-1370, fax 630-537-1369

Best Regards,
Nayax Group
Finance Department

Nayax = Executive Plaza 1, 11350 McCormick Rd, Ste 1004, Hunt Valley MD, 21031 410-666-3800 us 5



g,

NAYAX

Attanding to the Unatianded

NAYAX Clearing Agreement

Company: (the “Customer”)

WHEREAS, NAYAX LLC {"NAYAX"} has old to the Customer a NAYAX remote unit (such unil, a “NAYAX Unit”) enabiled to connect to
NAYAX's central server; and WHEREAS, concurrently with the execution of this agreemeiil, the Custemer has executed the Nayax
Service Agreement ("Service Agreement”);

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties have agreed as follows:

L

6.

Clearing Processing Services — NAYAX hereby agrees to provide to the Customer with cerlain cashless financial services utilizing
the NAYAX unique tetemetry cashless payment platform, solely in connection with Lhe Customer's vending equipment that is
equipped with a NAYAX Unit enabled to connect to NAYAX's Central Server {“Equipnient”). Customer acknowledges and agrees
that {a) some or all of the services provided lyy NAYAX hereunder may be performad by another member of the NAYAX group of
companies on behalf of NAYAX, and (b) in providing processing and clearing servir o hereunder NAYAX is acting as agent of
Heartland payment systems and reference to NAYAX performing such services bercunder shall be understood in such light.
Credit Card Transaction Processing Services 8 Associated Fees — the Customer hesreby appaints NAYAX s sole and exclusive
agent on behalf of the Customer, in connection with the processing of all card fransoctions {including bul not fimtted to
transactions via credit, debit and prepaid cards} in connection with the Equipmieal. With respect to each transaction, the
Customer shall pay such processing fee {consisting of a percentage of the applicabic gross and convenience fee of cashless
revenue) as specified in Schedule 1 attached hereto in addition to any applicable: VAT, wales tax, use tox or similer tax {the
“Processing Fee”). NAYAX shall be entitled to change the Processing Fee on 30 days prior written notice to the Customer,
provided that upon receipt of such notice the Customer may, within such 30 days poriad, lerminate this Agteement by written
notice to NAYAX without liabitity therefor.

Pre-Authorization ~ The Custome: agrees that for each cashless transaction, the relovant card will be submitted to the card
processor for card validation and transaction authorization. The Customer acknowledpes that the card processor may decline any
such transaction and that in such case NAYAX shall not continue with the clearing of the tlansaction.

Allocation of Risk ~ The Customer agrees that with respect to any transaction that clear but is subsequently declined by the card
processor for non-sufficient funds or other reasons, the risk of the associated lows ol vended produci. setttement funds,
Processing Fee or any other fee related to such transaction shall be assumed in its enlirety by the Customer. NAYAX may deduct
any relevant amounts from the ainount of net revenues to be tendered to the Custolner on a monthly basis. or may charge the
Customer separately therefor.

Settlement and Payment of Processing Fee — NAYAX shall render a weekly statement Lo the Customer during the term of this
Agreement. Such statement shall detail the net revenues resulting from the procesing of transactions from the use of the
Equipment and due to the Customer. Every week, NAYAX shall pay the Customer such net revenues , less {a) the amount of any
refunds, {b) the Processing Fee, (c} any chargeback from the credit card processor, (dY any amounts incurred for fraudulent
transactions, (e) any refevant bank charges, (f) any amounts required to be withheld by NAYAX pursuant to law and {g) any other
amounts due to NAYAX, including but not limited to any accounts receivable to NAYAX, activation fees, fecs under the Service
Agreement, or the processor hereunder or by law. The Customer acknowledges and aprees that the aforesaid statemen| may be
rendered to it by the member of 1the NAYAX group of companies performing the seivices on behalf of NAYAX, and that in such
case all references to NAYAX in this Section shall be deemed to refer to such entity.

General - the provisions of Sections 2-1% of the Service Agreement shall be deemed incorporated herein by reference.

Attachments:;
Schedule 1 ~ Fee Agreement Form
Schedule 2- Birect Deposit {ACH) Agreement Form

SIGNATURE ~ PRINTED NAME DATE XFrE

Nayax = Executive Plaza 1, 11350 McCormick Rd, Ste 1004, Hunt Valley MD, 21031 410-666-3800 n



NAYAX

Attanding to the Unattended

FEE AGREEMENT FORM

Contact Information

Ploase tilhm all relevant indoraticon below, and et e oo of any changes G

HEah vk

Company Name:

Customer # (internal use):

SHIP TO

Contact Name:

Address:

City:

State:

Zip Code:

Phone Number:

Fax Numbuor:

Email:

BILL TO {if different)

Contact Name:

Address:

City:

State:

Zip Code:

Phone Number:

Fax Nuimiber:

Email:

**Type of Product/Service
Being Sold From Your Machine:

Fees and Terms {NAYAX TO FILL QUT ONLY)

Payment Terms (if reimbursed by Nayax)**:

Offset/NI 1.0

(] offset/cc

Reimbursement Processing Fee (if applicable):

595 %

Activation Fee (per device):

3

1) Billing Plan: Cashless Only-TBS

device):

Monthly Fee (per

58.95

* Payment Term descriptions for custome: s not reimbursed by Nayax: Net30- ail invoices {for hardwaire, octivation fees and monthly sorvice feas)
are clue within 30 days of receipt by check ur LET; CC- all invoices {for hardware, aclivation foes aml menthly service fees} are automaltically paid by
credit card, kepl on file, on date of invoice (credit card service fee may apply)

** Payment Term descriptions for customers reimbursed weekiy by Nayax (imust also complete the allachod Schedule2- Direet Deposit Agreement
Form and include a voided check): Offset/Net30- aclivation and monthly service foe invoices are i omati ally offset from weokly reimbuorsements
once a month and all hardware invoices are due within 30 days of receipt by check or BFT; Offset/(C activation and menthly service fee invoices are

Nayax Executive Plaza 1, 11350 McCormick Rd, Ste 1004, Hunt Valley MD, 21031 410-666-3800 wu




§

NAYAX

Attending 1o the Unatiendod

automatically offset from weekly reimburscments once a month and all hardware invoices are aulomalically paid by credit card, kept on file, on
date of invoice {credit card service fee may apply)

Customer Declaration

FHEREBY REPRISENT 1O NAYAX THAT EARM AUTHORIZED AMD LMPOWERLD | INITG BIS AGRITIVIENT ON
THE COMPANY'S BLHALE AMD 1O SLCUIVE NOTICES ON BLTEALE OF THE COMI PIERETO AGREE T0 BE LLGALLY
BOUND AND HAVL EXECUTER THE AGREDMENT 1Y FHE AU THOREZED REPIRLSE 0100 T SIGNATURD OF W HCH IS
SET FORTH BLLOW

SIGNATURE PRINTED NAME DATE . TITLE

Nayax Executive Plaza 1, 11350 McCormick Rd, Ste 1004, Hunt Valley MD, 21031 = 410-666-3800  us{@n



.
!

NAYAX

Atlanding to tho Unotiandod

DIRECT DEPOSIT (ACH) AGREEMENT FORM

Authorization Apreement

H{RELOW NAMLE AMD SIGNATURLY 1IEREBY AUTHORIZL MAYAK ANDY TS DIESH MAMCIAL AGI IAT
PLLCTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFLIR QU PAYMIERNTS AS GOVERNG D 1Y T {NACHA ITEL AEFTTIONR] RECT
CREDUE{DUPOSIHSY OR DERFT (W TEDRAWALST S 1O RLMAIN N FFTLCT UR T RECEIVES 10 N
NOTIFICATION OF TERMINATION [IOM AM OFFICIAL AGLERTE O YOUR COMI B CHANGES T

INFORMATION PROVIDLD BELOW MU T RE SUBKMIT LD 1Y AN OFL ICIAL AGLT T CORAPAN

PROVIDED ON AN UPDATLD AND GRNUEB SCHEDULT 2 “OHRECE DEPOST (ACTHE MTOANMIDIN C I O

ACCOMIPANY THIS LORM. PLEASE EMAIL THIS SIGNED AND COMPLETED FORM AND VOIDED CHECK OR SOMETHING

FROM THE BANK VERIFYING THE ACCOUNT/ROUTING NUMBER TO: orders@tbsit360.com

Company Information

Company Name:

Customer # (internal use):

Finance Contact Name;

Address:
City: State: Zip Code:
Phone Number: Fax Nunibwr:

Email to send reimbursement
statements (up to 5 emails):

Bank information

Name of Financial Institution:

Name on Account:

Routing Number (9 digits):

Account Number:

Account Type: |:| Checking D Saving

BY PLACING MY SIGNATURE BELOW, § HEREBY DECLARE AND REPRESENT TO NAYAX THAT | AM Al FTHORIZED AND
EMPOWERED TO BIND MY COMPANY AND ACCEPT THL BINDING TERMS AND CONDITIONS ON MY BEHALE OF MY
COMPANY, LISTED ABOVL.

SIGNATURE PRINTED NAME DATE . TITLE

Nayax Executive Plaza 1, 11350 McCormick Rd, Ste 1004, Hunt Valley MD, 21031 410-666-3800 us@n



Tjo T aded

-
4

[eH0d xeAeN 3y3 031 SS3238 Lf)IM JISN IO} SIUILIBL [ENPIAIPUL JOJ PBYIPOL 3G LB BIep UOREDOT PUE JaquinN auydepy ‘adAL suysep

18428 L8 00°0% ST'629 €€ HELT]
18742 LT 0070 ST6T 133 1e3ougns 20
956G WETS 1 R 00°0% 06'vTS £z 22 | Qvdd unpy TT€TTT| TTELZTOO00000000| sardod ojoyd | €
%S6'S 88'TS FANT LY 00035 002s [4 22 | uoneis uedsg 90£TZT | 90£TZTONNO00000D; saidodcloyd |z
%86°S 1228 +vT°0$ 00°0% SETS 4 23 | avdd ynoA {8TTTT| £8TTTTOO00000000| saidodojoyd |t
% 894 | JUnNOWY 13N | 394 BuISSII0L | 994 IIUIIUSAUGCD | JUNOWY S504D | sued] §O i | 2dAL uondesues] | uoneroy | oN BuYIeN “ON 32A2Q odAg sunyoein | #
LTOT deap S¢/S - 61/s :28uey ajeqg TT Hj@am 10 poday
157425 :23uejeg
00°0$ 33530 ydegadrey)
00°0s 1313550 90AU|
00'0% sn(py poldd Joug :Ag pasedaud
19428 ‘fejol L102/5/9 :ajeq poday
(TL18) 1824 Suissadrosd 9s¥68L :ql Pwoisn)
00'0% 1934 JIUIUIALODD) 9SYETT 1JUNOIIY JAUOISND)
ST62$ JUNOWIY S5045 Ateiqiy 2qnd :PWeN 19wolsn)
0z/61/s uswalels i IsInquuiay

LTOT 5S4



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-29

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
ESTABLISHING A DEBT SERVICE FUND FOR REPAYMENT OF A SUPPORTING
INVESTMENTS IN ECONOMIC DIVERSIFICATION (SIED) LOAN FROM YAKIMA
COUNTY FOR COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS
RELATED TO WINE COUNTRY ROAD AND HIGGINS WAY IMPROVEMENTS

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW,
WASHINGTON, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Statement of Purpose: The City Council for the City of Grandview,
Washington, has determined that for accounting purposes it would be in the best
interest of the city to establish a Debt Service Fund for the repayment of a Supporting
Investments in Economic Diversification (SIED) loan as per Contract No. YC-WCR-
23, from Yakima County for costs associated with infrastructure improvements which
include Wine Country Road and Higgins Way Improvements.

Section 2. SIED (WCR/Higgins Way) Loan Fund: The SIED (WCR/Higgins
Way) Loan Fund (220) is hereby created. Said fund shall be available for deposit of
any interest accrued or funds that may be received pertaining to repayment of said
loan.

Section 3. Expenditures of Fund: Monies in the SIED Loan Fund shall be
expended exclusively for repayment of debt associated with repayment of the SIED
Loan with Yakima County as per SIED Contract No. YC-WCR-23.

Section 4. Severability: If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to
any person or circumstances is held to be invalid the remainder of this Ordinance or
the application of the provisions to other persons or circumstances shall not be
affected.

Section 5. Effect: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5)
days after its passage and publication as required by law.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on December 10, 2024.

MAYOR

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CITY ATTORNEY

PUBLICATION: 12/11/24
EFFECTIVE: 12/16/24

42



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-72

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
APPROVING TASK ORDER NO. 2024-09 WITH HLA ENGINEERING AND
LAND SURVEYING, INC., FOR THE PAPPY’S LANDING PHASE 2 DEVELOPMENT

WHEREAS, the City of Grandview has entered into a General Services
Agreement with HLA Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., (HLA) for work pursuant to
task orders; and,

WHEREAS, the City would like to enter into a Task Order with HLA to provide
construction engineering services for the Pappy’s Landing Phase 2 Development,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, AS FOLLOWS:

The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign Task Order No. 2024-09 with HLA
Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., for the Pappy’s Landing Phase 2 Development
with an estimated fee for services in the amount of $75,000 in the form as is attached
hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at a special
meeting on December 10, 2024.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

43



TASK ORDER NO. 2024-09

REGARDING GENERAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW
AND
HLA ENGINEERING AND LAND SURVEYING, INC. (HLA)

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Pappy’s Landing Phase 2 Development - CN Services
HLA Project No. 21090C

The City of Grandview (CITY) approved the Phase 2 Site Improvement Ptans for the Plat of Pappy’s
Landing (PROJECT). Infrastructure for this plat consisting of domestic water, sanitary sewer, and streets
will become property of the CITY upon completion of construction and formal acceptance by the CITY.
The CITY desires construction of infrastructure to be observed to confirm work is performed in
accordance with the approved plans and specifications for the plat.

Construction is anticipated to begin the week of February 3, 2025, and is anticipated 1o be substantially
complete before June 27, 2025. As observation of construction is a condition of plat approval, the CITY
has engaged HLA Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc. (HLA), to perform construction observation. Per
the CITY’s Construction Standards, the CITY will invoice Birdie Shots, LLC, {Developer) for
reimbursement of work performed.
SCOPE OF SERVICES:
HLA will work with the CITY to provide engineering services during construction as follows:
1.0 Construction Engineering

1.1 Atftend a preconstruction meeting with the CITY and Developer,

1.2 Review material submittals provided by the Developer as required by the project
specifications.

1.3 Respond to CITY, Developer, and community inquiries during construction.

1.4 Attend periodic construction meetings, as necessary.

1.5 Fumish a qualified resident engineer (inspector) to observe the PROJECT for substantial
compliance with the plans and specifications and CITY Construction Standards. Periodic
inspection is anticipated pending type of work performed.

1.6 Prepare Inspector Daily Reports for the days a resident engineer is present.

1.7 Conduct final walkthrough inspection and prepare list of items (punchlist) to be corrected by
the Developer.

1.8 Make recommendation to the CITY for approval of construction.
2.0 Additional Services

2.1 Provide professional engineering services for additional work requested by the CITY that is
not included in this Task Order.

G\Conlracts & Task Orders\Grandview\202412024-11-20 21090C Task Crder No. 2024-G9 Pappy's Landing Development - Ph. 2 - CN Services.docx
Page 1 o



3.0 _Items to be Furnished and Responsibility of the CITY:
The CITY will provide or perform the following:

3.1 Provide full information as to the CITY’s requirements of the PROJECT.
3.2 The CITY shall assist HLA by providing all available information pertinent to the PROJECT.

3.3 Examine all requests for information presented by HLA, and provide written decisions within a
reasonable time, so as not to delay work.

3.4 The CITY shall arrange for safe access to, and make all provisions for, HLA and HLA's
consultants to enter upon public property as required for HLA to perform services.

TIME OF PERFORMANCE:

1.0 __Construction Engineering

Construction is anticipated to begin the week of February 3, 2025, and be substantially complete before
June 27, 2025 (120 working days). Work following substantial completion may include review of the
Project,

punchlist preparation, final walk through, and recommendation of approval.

FEE FOR SERVICES:

For the services furnished by HLA as described in this Task Order, the CITY agrees to pay HLA the fees
as set forth herein. The amounts listed below may be revised only by written agreement of all parties.

1.0 __Construction Engineering

All work for construction engineering services shall be performed on a time-spent basis at the normal
hourly billing rates included in our General Agreement, plus reimbursement for non-salary expenses for
the estimated fee of $75,000. If the Contractor is granted additional working days beyond those identified
in the Time of Performance, then work shall be billed as additional services until an amendment to this
Task Order is executed.

2.0 Additional Services

Additional work requested by the CITY not included in this Task Order shall be authorized by the CITY
and agreed upon by HLA in writing prior to proceeding with services. HLA will perform additional services
as directed/authorized by the CITY on a time-spent basis at the hourly billing rates included in our
General Agreement, plus reimbursement for direct non-salary expenses such as vehicle mileage, out-of-
town meails/lodging, advertising, and printing expenses. Outside subconsultant's invoices shall be marked
up by a factor of 1.10 times the subconsultant invoice.

Proposed: ﬁ% (/202024
HLA Engineering an urveying, Inc. Daté ’ 4

Michael T. Battle, PE, President

Approved:

City of Grandview Date
Ashley Lara, Mayor

G:\Contracls & Task Orders\Grandview\202412024-11-20 21090C Task Order No. 2024-09 Pappy's Landing Development - Ph. 2 - CN Services.do
Page 2



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-73

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
APPROVING TASK ORDER NO. 2024-10 WITH HLA ENGINEERING AND
LAND SURVEYING, INC., FOR THE SPLASH PAD IMPROVEMENTS

WHEREAS, the City of Grandview has entered into a General Services
Agreement with HLA Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., (HLA) for work pursuant to
task orders; and,

WHEREAS, the City would like to enter into a Task Order with HLA to provide
design and construction engineering services for the Splash Pad Improvements,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, AS FOLLOWS:

The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign Task Order No. 2024-10 with HLA
Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., for the Splash Pad Improvements with an
estimated fee for services in the amount of $55,500 for design engineering and $60,500
for construction engineering in the form as is attached hereto and incorporated herein
by reference.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at a special
meeting on December 10, 2024.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

46



TASK ORDER NO. 2024-10

REGARDING GENERAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF GRANDVIEW
AND
HLA ENGINEERING AND LAND SURVEYING, INC. (HLA)

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Splash Pad Improvements
HLA Project No. 24153E

The City of Grandview (CITY) has budgeted up to $500,000 of local funds, and $50,000 of American
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds to design and construct Splash Pad Improvements (PROJECT) at the
CITY's Westside Park. The splash pad will consist of several water features, landscaping, and additional
amenities including seating. The total project is anticipated to cost approximately $522,000.

Engineering design work will begin immediately following Task Order approval with construction
anticipated in Surmmer 2025.

SCOPE OF SERVICES:

At the direction of the CITY, HLA Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc. (HLA), shall provide the following
professional services for the Spiash Pad Improvements (PROJECT):

1.0 _ Design Engineering

1.1 Provide complete PROJECT management to deliver the PRCJECT within mutually
determined expectations.

1.2 Conduct a topographic survey of the PROJECT area as required to complete design, plans,
and specifications, including call for utility locates.

1.3 Perform field investigations necessary to design the identified improvements.

1.4 Research applicable Washington State Department of Health {DOH) water recreation
standards.

1.5  Attend meetings with the CITY to address technical aspects of the work related to scope,
design, and schedule of the PROJECT. Up to two {2) mestings are anticipated.

1.6 Prepare preliminary 30% plans and a cost estimate of improvements for review and approval
by the CITY.

1.7  Notify private utilites of pending improvements.

1.8 Based on approved preliminary engineering plans, perform and present design to CITY at
60% and 90% completion for final coordination.

1.9  Assist CiTY with sole-source procurement of splash pad water feature equipment through
Washington State cooperative agreements.

1.10 Meet with Pacific Power estimator on-site to discuss conditions and estimate for new power
service.

1.11 Prepare and submit design report and construction plans to DOH for review and approval.
1.12 Perform quality control and assurance review of all final documents.

G:\Conlracts & Task Orders\Grandview\202412024-11-21 24153E Task Qrdar No. 2024-10 Splash Pad Impravements.docx Page 1 of § 1 7



1.186

1.17

1.18
1.19
1.20
1.21

1.22

Incorporate CITY review comments and prepare final plans, specifications, and estimate for
review and approval by CITY.

Prepare Engineer's opinion of estimated construction cost,

Provide final plans and specifications to the CITY in electronic format suitable for printing and
use at time of bid advertisement. It is anticipated HLA will prepare one (1) complete set of
plans and specifications for one bid cail; additional bid packages will be considered additional
services,

Prepare advertisement for bids. Coordinate with CITY on number and location publications.
All advertising fees to be paid by the CITY.

Post documents to HLA website and notify potential bidders, utility companies, and plan
centers of PROJECT posting, and maintain planholder list.

Answer and supply information as requested by prospective bidders.

Prepare and issue addenda to contract documents, if necessary.

Attend the bid opening and participate in the evaluation process.

Prepare summary of bids received and review bidder's qualifications and responsiveness.

Make recommendation of award to the CITY for construction contract.

2.0 Construction Engineering

2.1

2.2
2.3

2.4
2.5
26

27
2.8
29
210
211
212

2.13

Following Council award authorization, prepare notice of award to the Contractor, assemble
construction contract documents, and coordinate contract execution with the CITY and
Contractor,

Review Contractor's submission of certificate of insurance and contract bond.

Coordinate and facilitate preconstruction meeting with the CITY, Contractor, private utilities,
and affected agencies, including preconstruction agenda and meeting record.

Prepare and transmit notice to proceed to Contractor.
Furnish a field survey crew to provide geometric control, including construction staking.

Fumish a qualified resident engineer (inspector} to observe construction for substantial
compliance with plans and specifications and CITY Construction Standards.

Review Contractor's submission of sampies and shop drawings.
Maintain submittal list for duration of PROJECT.

Respond to Contractor requests for information (RFI).

Interpret plans and specifications when necessary.

Prepare daily progress reports.

Prepare weekly statements of working days.

Create and maintain accurate construction documentation for the life of the PROJECT.

Gi\Coniracts & Task Orders\Grandview\202412024-11-21 24153E Task Order No. 2024-10 Splash Pad Improvements.docx Page 2 of 5 l 8



2.14

215

2.16

217
218

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

223
2.24

2.25

Consult and advise the CITY during construction and make final review and report of the
completed work with CITY representatives.

Coordinate testing scheduling with the Contractor's materials testing firm and review
acceptance sampling and testing for construction materials.

Coordinate and attend construction meetings anticipated once per week during the duration
of improvements.

Perform measurement and computation of pay items.

Prepare and provide monthly progress estimates to the CITY and recommend progress
payments for the Contractor.

Prepare proposed contract change orders and/or force account computations as required.

Conduct final walkthrough inspection with the Contractor and CITY. Prepare and transmit
punchilist to Contractor.

Prepare and furnish record drawings and field notes of completed work in accordance with
PROJECT field records provided by the resident engineer and those submitted by the
Contractor.

Prepare DOH project completion report.

Prepare and submit recommendation of PROJECT acceptance.

Prepare and submit Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract (NOC). Monitor fien
releases from state agencies.

Notify CITY when retainage may be released.

itlo ervice

Provide professional engineering and land surveying services for additional work requested by the CITY
that is not included in this Task Order.

4,

Ished Responstbility of CITY

The CITY will provide or perform the following:

4.1
42

4.3

4.4

45
4.6
4.7

Provide full information as to CITY requirements of the PROJECT.

Provide all available information pertinent to the PROJECT relative to completion of design
and construction of the PROJECT.

Examine ail documents presented by HLA and provide written decisions within a reasonable
time so as not to delay the work of HLA.

Obtain approval of all governmental authorities with jurisdiction over the PROJECT, and
approvals and consents from other individuals as necessary for completion of the PROJECT.

Pay ali review fees and costs associated with obtaining such approvals.
Pay for advertising, notices, or other publications as may be required.

Pay for all necessary permits and testing fees not paid by the Contractor.

G:\Contracts & Task Orders\Grandview\202412024-11-21 24153E Task Qrder No. 2024-10 Splash Pad improvements docx Page 3of 5 1 9



TIME OF PERFORMANCE:

HLA will diligently pursue completion of the PROJECT as follows:

1.0 Design Engineering

1.1 HLA will provide 30% draft plans for CITY review within forty (40) working days from receipt
of signed Task Order.

1.2 60% draft plans, draft specifications, and cost estimate will be provided within thirty (30)
working days of receiving CITY comments on 30% plans.

1.3 90% draft plans, specifications, and estimate will be provided within twenty (20) working days
of receiving CITY comments on 60% plans, specifications, and estimate.

1.4 Final plans, specifications, and estimate will be provided within twenty (20) working days of
receiving CITY comments on 90% plans, specifications, and estimate.

2.0 _Construction Engineering

Construction engineering services shall begin upon construction contract award by the CITY to the iowest
responsible bidder and extend through the completion of construction, and completion of as-constructed
drawings.

A maximum of twenty (20) working days has been assumed for construction of the improvements, utilizing
a standard 40-hour work week,

Should the Contractor be granted time extensions for construction completion due to recognized delays,
requested additional work, and/or change orders, services during construction beyond the twenty (20)
working days shall be considered additional services.

3.0 Additional Services

Time for completion of work directed by the CITY under Additional Services shall be negotiated and
mutually agreed upon at the time service is requested by the CITY.

FEE FOR SERVICE:

For the services described within this Task Order, the CITY agrees to pay HLA the fees as set forth
herein. The amounts listed below may be revised only by written agreement of both parties.

1.0__ Design Engineering

All work for design engineering services shall be performed for the lump sum fee of $55,500.

2.0 Construction Engineering

Alt work for construction engineering services shall be performed on an hourly time-spent basis at the
normal hourly billing rates included in our general Agreement, plus reimbursement for non-salary
expenses for the estimated maximum fee of $60,500. If the Contractor is granted additional working days
beyond those identified in the Time of Performance, then work shall be considered Additional Services.

G:\Contracls & Task Orders\Grandview\202412024.11-21 24153E Task Order No, 2024-10 Splash Pad Improvemants docx Page 4 of 5 5 0



3.0 Additional Services

Additional work requested by the CITY not included in this Task Order shali be authorized by the CITY
and agreed upon by HLA in writing prior to proceeding with services. HLA will perform additional services
as directed/authorized by the CITY on a time-spent basis at the hourly billing rates included in our
General Agreement, plus reimbursement for direct non-salary expenses such as vehicle mileage, out-of-
town meals/lodging, advertising, and printing expenses. Outside subconsultant's invoices shall be marked
up by & factor of 1.10 times the subconsultant invoice.

Proposed:

Approved:

City of Grandview Date
Ashley Lara, Mayor

G\Contracls & Task Ordars\Grandview\202412024-11-21 24153E Task Order No. 2024-10 Splash Pad Improvements.docx Page 5 of 5 5 1



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-74

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
APPROVING TASK ORDER NO. 2024-11 WITH HLA ENGINEERING AND
LAND SURVEYING, INC., FOR THE WILLOUGHBY ROAD RECONSTRUCTION

WHEREAS, the City of Grandview has entered into a General Services
Agreement with HLA Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., (HLA) for work pursuant to
task orders; and,

WHEREAS, the City would like to enter into a Task Order with HLA to provide
design engineering, bidding services and construction engineering services for the
Willoughby Road Reconstruction,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, AS FOLLOWS:

The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign Task Order No. 2024-11 with HLA
Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., for the Willoughby Road Reconstruction with an
estimated fee for services in the amount of $120,000 for design engineering in the form
as is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at a special
meeting on December 10, 2024.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

52



TASK ORDER NO. 2024-11
REGARDING GENERAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW
AND

HLA ENGINEERING AND LAND SURVEYING, INC. {HLA)

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Willoughby Road Reconstruction
HLA Project No. 24163E

The City of Grandview (CITY) desires to reconstruct and widen Willoughby Road from Elm Street to the
end of the road. This project is in preparation of future cemetery improvements and expansion, to include
approximately 1,400 linear feet of roadway improvements including curb, gutter and sidewalk. It is
anticipated Design Engineering services are being paid for with American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds.

SCOPE OF SERVICES:

At the direction of the CITY, HLA shall provide professional engineering services for the Willoughby Road
Reconstruction (PROJECT). HLA services shall include the following.

1.0 Design Engineering

1.1

1.2

1.3
1.4

1.5

16
17

1.8
1.9

1.10

1.1

Provide complete PROJECT management to deliver the PROJECT within mutually
determined expectations.

Conduct a topographic survey of the PROJECT area as required to complete design, plans,
and specifications, including call for utility locates.

Perform field investigations necessary to design the identified improvements.

Attend meetings with the CITY to address technical aspects of the work related to scope,
design, and schedule of the PROJECT. Up to two (2) meetings are anticipated.

Prepare preliminary 80% plans and a cost estimate of improvements for review and approval
by the CITY.

Natify private utilities of pending improvements.

Based on approved preliminary engineering plans, prepare 80% plans, specifications, and
cost estimate and provide to CITY for final review and coordination.

Perform quality control and assurance review of all final documents.

Incorporate CITY review comments and prepare final plans, specifications, and estimate for
review and approval by CITY.

Prepare Engineer's construction cost estimate.

Provide final plans and specifications to the CITY in electronic format suitable for printing and
use at time of bid advertisement. It is anticipated HLA will prepare one (1) complete set of
plans and specifications for one bid call; additicnal bid packages will be considered additional
services.

Ws02\General\Contracts & Task Orders\Grandview\202412024-12-04 24183E Task Order No. 2024-11 Willoughby Road Reconstruciion.docx

S



2.0 __Bidding Services and Construction Engineering

The following services are anticipated to be added by amendment following receipt of construction

funding:
2.1

22

23
24
2.5
2.6
2.7
2.8

2.9
210

21
2.12
2.13

2.14
2.15
2.16
217
218
2.19
2.20
2.21

222

2.23

Prepare advertisement for bids. Coordinate with CITY on number and location publications.
All advertising fees to be paid by the CITY.

Post documents to HLA website and notify potential bidders, utility companies, and plan
centers of PROJECT posting, and maintain planholder list.

Answer and supply information as requested by prospective bidders.

Prepare and issue addenda to contract documents, if necessary.

Attend the bid opening and participate in the evaluation process.

Prepare summary of bids received and review bidder's qualifications and responsiveness.
Make recommendation of award to the CITY for construction contract.

Following Council award authorization, prepare notice of award to the Contractor, assembie
construction contract documents, and coordinate contract execution with the CITY and
Contractor.

Review Contractor’'s submission of certificate of insurance and contract bond.

Coordinate and facilitate preconstruction meeting with the CITY, Contractor, private utilities,
and affected agencies, including preconstruction agenda and meeting record.

Prepare and transmit notice to proceed to Contractor.
Furnish a field survey crew to provide geometric control, including construction staking.

Furnish a qualified resident engineer (inspector) to observe construction for substantial
compliance with plans and specifications and CITY Construction Standards.

Review Contractor's submission of samples and shop drawings.

Maintain record of materials (ROM) for duration of PROJECT.

Respond to Contractor requests for information (RFI).

Interpret plans and specifications when necessary.

Prepare daily progress reports.

Prepare weekly statements of working days.

Create and maintain accurate construction documentation for the life of the PROJECT.
Ensure the CITY has all necessary files for potential audits.

Consult and advise the CITY during construction and make final review and report of the
completed work with CITY representatives.

Coordinate testing scheduling with the Contractor's materials testing firm and review
acceptance sampling and testing for construction materials,

Ws02\GeneralConlracts & Task Orders\Grandview\202412024-12-04 24183E Task Order No. 2024-11 Willoughby Road Reconstruction.docx

Page 2 of 1



2.24 Coordinate and attend construction meetings anticipated once per week during the duration
of improvements.

2.25 Perform measurement and computation of pay items.

2.26 Prepare and provide monthly progress estimates to the CITY and recommend progress
payments for the Contractor.

2.27 Prepare proposed contract change orders and/or force account computations as required.

2.28 Conduct final walkthrough inspection with the Contractor and CITY. Prepare and transmit
punchilist to Contractor.

2.29 Prepare and furnish record drawings and field notes of completed work in accordance with
PROJECT field records provided by the resident engineer and those submitted by the
Contractor.

2.30 Monitor the Contractor's compliance with federal and state labor standards.

2.31 Assist the CITY with funding reimbursement information and supporting documentation, as
requested.

2.32 Prepare and submit recommendation of PROJECT acceptance.

2.33 Prepare and submit Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract (NOC). Monitor lien
releases from state agencies.

2.34 Notify CITY when retainage may be released.

2.35 Ensure the PROJECT is completed as designed and contract specifications are adhered to
during construction.

3.0 Additional Services

Provide professional engineering services for additional work requested by the CITY that is not included
in this Task Order.

4.0 Items to be Furnished and Responsibility of the CITY
The CITY will provide or perform the following:
4.1  Provide full information as to CITY requirements for the PROJECT.

4.2 Provide all available information pertinent to the PROJECT relative to completion of design
and construction of the PROJECT.

4.3 Examine all documents presented by HLA and provide written decisions within a reasonable
time so as not to delay the work of HLA.

4.4 Obtain approval of all governmental authorities for the PROJECT, and approvals and
consents from other individuals as necessary for completion of the PROJECT.

4.5 Pay for advertising, notices, or other publications as may be required.

4.6 Pay for all necessary permits and testing fees not paid by the Contractor.

Ws02\General\Contracis & Task Orders\Grandview\2024\2024-12-04 24163E Task Order No. 2024-11 Willoughby Road Reconstruction.docx

Page 3 of5 5



TIME OF PERFORMANCE:
HLA will diligently pursue completion of the PROJECT as follows:

1.0 Design Engineering

1.1 HLA will provide 60% draft plans, specifications, and cost estimate for CITY review within
ninety (80) working days from receipt of signed Task Order.

1.2 90% draft plans, specifications, and estimate will be provided within thirty (30) working days
of receiving CITY comments on 60% plans, specifications, and estimate.

1.3  Final plans, specifications, and estimate will be provided within thirty (30) working days of
receiving CITY comments on 80% plans, specifications, and estimate.

2.0 Bidding Services and Construction Engineering

The following services are anticipated to be added by amendment when construction funding becomes
available;

2.1 Bidding services and construction engineering shall begin upon completion of final plans and
specifications. HLA will coordinate with the CITY to expedite advertising of the project and
select a bid opening date.

2.2 A maximum of eighty (80) working days has been assumed for the construction of
improvements, utilizing a standard 40-hour work week.

2.3 Should the Contractor be granted time extensions for construction completion due to
recognized delays, requested additional work, and/or change orders, services during
construction beyond the eighty (80) working days shall be considered additional services.

3.0 Additional Services

Time for completion of work directed by the CITY under additional services shall be negotiated and
mutually agreed upon at the time service is requested by the CITY.

FEE FOR SERVICES:
For the services furnished by HLA as described within this Task Order, the CITY agrees to pay HLA the

fees as set forth herein. The amounts listed below may be revised only by written agreement of both
parties.

1.0 Design Engineering

All work for design engineering services shall be performed for the lump sum fee of $120,000.00.

2.0 Construction Engineering

Construction Engineering services will be added by amendment when construction funding becomes
available.

Ws02\General\Contracis & Task Orders\Grandview\2024\2024-12-04 24163E Task Order No. 2024-11 Willoughby Road Reconstruction.docx

Page 4 of 6



3.0 Additional Services

Additional work requested by the CITY not included in this Task Order shall be authorized by the CITY
and agreed upon by HLA in writing prior to proceeding with services. HLA will perform additional services
as directed/authorized by the CITY on a time-spent basis at the hourly billing rates included in our
General Agreement, pius reimbursement for direct non-salary expenses such as vehicle mileage, out-of-
town meals/lodging, advertising, and printing expenses. Outside subconsultant's invoices shall be marked
up by a factor of 1.10 times the subconsultant invoice,

Proposed: %% . (zfv/2
HLAEngineering and L eying, Inc. Date =~ 7

Michael T. Battle, PE, President

Approved:

City of Grandview Date
Ashley Lara, Mayor

Ws02\General\Contracts & Task Orders\Grandview\202412024-12-04 24163E Task Order No. 2024-11 Willoughby Road Reconsiruction docx

Page 5 of 7



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-75

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT
NO. 010125GV WITH THE YAKIMA VALLEY CONFERENCE OF GOVERNMENTS

WHEREAS, the City of Grandview wishes to enter into a Technical Assistance
Contract with the Yakima Valley Conference of Governments for technical planning
assistance,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON, as follows:

The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the Technical Assistance Contract No.
010125GV with the Yakima Valley Conference of Governments in the form as is attached
hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on December 10, 2024.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

58



Organization Name: City of Grandview
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT NO. 0101256V

THIS CONTRACT, entered into this (DATE) January 1, 2025 , by and between
the Yakima Valley Conference of Governments, a regional association having its territorial limits within
Yakima County, State of Washington (hereinafter called the "Conference"), acting herein by, Conference
Chair, James Restucci , acting hereunto duly authorized, City of Grandview .
a municipal corporation or organization, located within Yakima County, State of Washington (hereinafter
called the "City" or “Organization™), acting herein by (Name of Mayor or ED.} Mayor Ashley Lara

Executive Director or Mayor, hereunto duly authorized:

WITNESSETH THAT;

WHEREAS, the City or Organization has determined that a need exists to secure assistance in addition to
normal Conference activities; and,

WHEREAS, the City or Organization is desirous of contracting with the Conference for certain technical
planning assistance; and,

WHEREAS, the Conference possesses the technical planning staff with the necessary expertise to provide
the required services;

NOW THEREFORE, the parties do mutually agree as follows:

1. Scope of Services. Services performed under this contract may consist of, but are not limited to, the
following tasks. Upon mutual agreement by the City/Organization and the Conference of a detailed work
program and time schedule, the Conference shall, in a satisfactory and proper manner, perform the
following types of services:
1.1 Develop or assist in development of grant applications for community projects as requested
by the Mayor or Executive Director;

1.2 Assist the City or Organization in the review of development proposals such as rezone and
variance applications, State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) reviews, planned unit
developments and subdivisions as requested by the Mayor or Organization;

1.3 Assist the City Council and Planning Commission with any other activities mutually agreed
upon by the City and the Conference.

1.4 Other Services - Choose One
Not Applicable
D See Attached Additional Scope of Services

2. Time of Performance, The services provided by the Conference pursuant to this contract shall:
Commence on January 1, 2025 and shall end on December 31, 2025.

59



3. Access to Information. It is agreed that all information, data, reports, records and maps as are

available and for the carrying out of the work outlined above, shall be furnished to the Conference by the City or
Organization. No charge shall be made to the Conference for such information, and the Organization will
cooperate with the Conference in every way possible to facilitate the performance of the work described

in this contract.

4. Compensation and Method of Payment. The maximum amount of compensation and reimbursement
to be paid by the City or Organization hereunder shall not exceed $ 30,000.00 for all services required.

In addition, the City or Organization will provide, at no charge to the Conference, photocopy service and
secretarial assistance in typing reports for submittal. The Conference shall assume full responsibility for
payments of federal, state and local taxes or contributions imposed or required under the Social Security,
Workmen's Compensation and Income Tax Laws for persons other than Organization employees
performing services pursuant to this contract.

5. Invoicing. The Conference shall submit monthly billings to City of Grandview for payment
based upon work completed for City of Grandview . Billing for work shall be based upon
actual expenses incurred. If applicable, the detailed budget and work program attached will provide an
estimate of those expenses. However, amounts may be shifted between various line items to cover costs
incurred. The final invoice shall be submitted within 15 days after the ending date of the contract.

6. Termination.
6.1. Termination of Contract for Cause. If, through any cause, City of Grandview or the
Conference shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner the obligations contained within this
contract, the non-defaulting party shall, thereupon, have the right to terminate this contract by
giving, at least fifteen (15) days before the effective date of such termination, written notice to the
other of such termination specifying the effective date thereof.

6.2. Termination for Convenience. Either City of Grandview or the Conference may effect
termination of this contract upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party to the other party.
If the contract is terminated, City of Grandview will compensate the Conference for that

portion of services extended unto city of Grandview

7. Modification. The terms of this contract may be changed or medified by mutual agreement of
City of Grandview and the Conference in the form of written amendments to this contract.

8. Contract for Continuation. City of Grandview shall give notice of their intent to continue or
discontinue the contractual agreement for the year 2025 , at least thirty (30) days prior to the
completion of this contract.

YAKIMA VALLEY CONFERENCE OF City of Grandview
GOVERNMENTS YAKIMA COUNTY
BY: BY:
Conference Chair Ashley Lara, Mayor
ATTEST: ATTEST;

Secretary

60



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-76

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
ACCEPTING THE REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS AND COST PROPOSAL FOR
EVENT PLANNING AND EXECUTION AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN
ALL CONTRACT DOCUMENTS WITH FINN STYLES COMPANY

WHEREAS, the City of Grandview advertised requests for qualifications (RFQ) and
costs proposals for event planning and execution of two major public events in 2025 at the
Childress Amphitheater; and,

WHEREAS, Finn Styles Company submitted the most advantageous RFQ and cost
proposal, which has been accepted;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, AS FOLLOWS:

The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign all contract documents with Finn Styles
Company for event planning and execution for up to $10,000 for each event.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on December 10, 2024.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

61



Shane Fisher

\

From: Matt Cordray

Sent: Monday, December 2, 2024 8:07 AM

To: Robert Ozuna; Robert Ozuna; Bill Moore; Bill Moore 1 (billandrachel@charter.net); Laura
Flores; Laura Flores; Ashley Lara; Ashley Lara

Cc: Shane Fisher

Subject: FW: Proposal for Event Planning and Execution

Please see event proposal below

Matthew Cordray

City Treasurer

City of Grandview

207 West Second Street

Grandview, WA 98930

PH: (509) 882-9207

FAX: (509) 882-3099
attc@grandview.wa.

www. grandview.wa,us

This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information and is intended for the person/entity to whom it
was originally addressed. Any use by others is strictly prohibited.

From: Cody Goeppner <cgoeppner@ prosserprincess.com:
Sent: Friday, November 29, 2024 5:48 PM

To: Matt Cordray <mattc@grandview.wa.us>

Subject: Proposal for Event Planning and Execution

CAUTION: External Email

Good evening Matt,

Please see my proposal below:

Proposal for Event Planning and Execution

Submitted by: Finn Styles Company

Contact: Cody Goeppner, Founder

Date: Friday, November 27, 2024

Company Overview:

Finn Styles Company specializes in strategic event planning, marketing, and execution for public and

arivate organizations. Qur expertise includes coordinating multi-faceted events that enhance community
engagement, drive visitor attendance, and showcase unigue venues.

1 62



Experience:

Successfully managed events with 200-1,000+ attendees, including cultural celebrations, fu ndraisers,
and community engagement festivals.

Experience in utilizing upgraded facilities and sound systems to create immersive experiences, such as
concerts, outdoor cinema nights, and cultural showcases.

Proven track record of working within budgets while delivering impactful events.

Team Strengths:
Strategic planning to align with community goals and values.
Experienced in on-site management, vendor coordination, and live event troubleshooting.

Expertise in marketing campaigns, leveraging social media, local advertising, and partnerships to
maximize attendance.

Event Proposals

Event 1: BBQ Festival and Celebration

Event Theme: “Grandview's Backyard BBQ Bash”
Proposed Activities:

1. Opening Ceremony:

10:00 AM: Kick off the event with a patriotic ceremony, featuring the National Anthem, a flag-raising by a
local veterans' group, and remarks by city leaders.

2. BBQ Competition:
BBQ cook-off featuring local pitmasters and restaurants.

Categories include Ribs, Pulled Pork, Brisket, and a “People’s Choice” award.

3. Community Booths:

Partner with schools and community groups to host food and game booths. 6 3
2



Examples: Hot dog stands, baked goods, carnival games like ring toss, and water balloon fights.

4, Live Music and Performances:
Acoustic performances throughout the day.

Headlining evening concert with a local or regional band, leveraging the amphitheater’s upgraded sound
system.

5. Interactive Activities:
Yard games, sack races, and a dunk tank featuring local leaders.

Kids Zone with bounce houses, face painting, and patriotic crafts.

6. Fireworks Display:

End the night with a professional fireworks show {pending city approval).

Schedule:
10:00 AM - 10:00 PM

Morning opening ceremony, followed by BBQ tasting, community activities, and live music, with
fireworks as the grand finale {pending funding and city approval).

Projected Budget:

Planning, Coordination, and Management: $3,500
Marketing and Advertising: $2,000

Entertainment and Activities: $3,500

Miscellaneous/Contingency: $1,000



Event 2: Dia de los Muertos Festival

Event Theme: “Grandview Dia de los Muertos Celebration”
Proposed Activities:

1. Opening Ceremony:

10:00 AM: Begin with an opening blessing or speech by a community culturat leader, followed by
traditional Mexican music and a ribbon-cutting to welcome attendees.

2. Cultural Celebrations:

Create a community altar for Dia de los Muertos, inviting attendees to contribute photos or mementos of
loved ones.

Include folklérico dance performances and mariachi bands to highlight Mexican culture.

3. Community Booths:
Partner with schools and community organizations to host food and activity booths.

Examples: Tamales, pan de muerto, tacos, sugar skull decorating, and crafts for kids.

4. Live Music and Performances:

Feature a lineup of local and regional Mexican music acts, such as mariachi, Nortefio, or Banda groups.

5. Vendors and Market:

Highlight artisans and vendors selling traditional Mexican crafts, jewelry, clothing, and decor.

6. Cultural Workshops:

4 65



Host workshops on creating papel picado, decorating sugar skulls, and understanding the history of Dia
de los Muertos.

7. Evening Procession:

End the day with a candlelight procession accompanied by music, celebrating the memories of loved
ones.

Schedule:
10:00 AM - 9:00 PM

Morning opening ceremony, followed by cultural activities, live music, and evening procession to close
the event.

Projected Budget:

Planning, Coordination, and Management: $3,500
Marketing and Advertising: $2,000

Entertainment and Activities: $3,500

Miscellaneous/Contingency: $1,000

Deliverables

1. Comprehensive event plans, timelines, and layouts for booths and activities.

2. Marketing strategy leveraging social media, local ads, and partnerships with schools and community
organizations.

3. Coordination with local groups and cultural organizations to ensure authentic representation and

participation.



4. On-site management for setup, execution, and tear-down.

5. Post-event report with attendance metrics and recommendations.

Additional Information
Timetine: Planning begins within 2 weeks of contract award.
Insurance: Will be fully insured for public event coordination.

Collaboration: Regular planning sessions with city representatives, schools, and community groups to
ensure alignment with goals.

Finn Styles Company is excited to partner with the City of Grandview to deliver these vibrant, community-

driven events that celebrate culture, connection, and the unigue character of Grandview at the Childress
Amphitheater.

Sincerely,

Cody Goeppner

Finn Styles Company
codv@finnstylesco.com
812-639-8263



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-77

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE AUDIOVISUAL SOLUTION PROPOSAL
WITH AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC FOR THE STAGE PAVILION AUDIO SYSTEM AT

THE CHILDRESS AMPHITHEATER

WHEREAS, the City wishes to engage the services of Avidex Industries, LLC for
the installation of the Stage Pavilion Audio System at the Childress Amphitheater; and,

WHEREAS, Avidex Industries, LLC, has submitted an Audiovisual Solutions
Proposal for the City of Grandview,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, AS FOLLOWS:

The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the Audiovisual Solution Proposal with Avidex
Industries, LLC for the Stage Pavilion Audi System at the Childress Amphitheater in the
total amount of $182,064.93, in the form as is attached hereto and incorporated herein
by reference.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on December 10, 2024.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

68



Docusign Envelope ID: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7F5696ECOD4A

WASHINGTON ¥

City Of Grandview
Stage Pavilion Audio System

AUDIOVISUAL SOLUTION PROPOSAL
Washington DES Master Contract No. 03418

Avidex Project # 100240364

Version 1

Submitted by
Grant Howard

~ oo,
aVIIIG)( KX

Audio Video Integration & Design Excellence

2018 East Riverside Ave, Ste 1, Spokane, WA 99202 | 508.455.6873

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 1 November 27, 2024
CA LOW VOLTAGE LICENSE CSLB #981651 | WA Limited Energy License AVIDEIL963CZ

Avidex Project # 100240364
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123) City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Sysler6 9



Docusign Envelope |1D: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7FS696ECOD4A

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION ...ttt inesisas e essab s s esssass st ensresassmsassasassstens stessssasneassassasassnnsanssane 3
JOBSITE ADDRESS. ............oonnininniiiiisiississssissssssrenssessssessssssassssessssssmesssssasasssonssansseessass 3
SCOPE...........ccirciiniiirniiiniiasissassassesnesasessssassifisseasmanssarassmsasns auslons sosesasanras diss semanssasmerbse Sl cemers 3
SCHEDULE ... sncsisseistsssss s s srareseasassas st eravesreverasssnansasassbses seassenanennnn 6
PRICING. ...ttt sista s osanase s sar e s s e s s s vesesas st st e st bbsreme s mmsasamassannnn 7
WASHINGTON STATE DES CONTRACT OPTION.........oovrrireecneerestsrnererrermsassesssssseesessessones 8
TECHNICAL SERVICES .........cccinimiiitsierinncnncserannsessssserssesssissstsssstess sesesssseassesmsnssssnssssessases 9
PROJECT MANAGEMENT i o di it i s i v e e S et A s i 9
N I RN o i i ii000, s smmanammnr s senan s e SR AR PSS R AR R RS SES SRR 9
CONTROL SYSTEM PROGRAMMING. ..........coooiiiieeiciiniieisieis it es st ssssts e essennen s 10
INTECIRATION LBBIORE s st sinsssss seaminmeas s so e s e S S S b 10
TRAINING & DOCUMENTATION. o i s b it s i niiinis 10
PROVISIONS ...ttt cnnrenisess s s st e sasaeseassasscsnssssevasasssesnassasssn anssesseanseranas 11
WORK & PRODUCTS PROVIDED BY OTHERS (EXCLUSIONS).........covvvieererrierreeen. 13
NEW SYSTEM WARRANTY .........cccciiimiitrinisermirearscemessssnssrsssmesssssssssssassencansmnssssssnsssssssanssenees 14
360° SERVICE™ MANAGED SERVICES & SUPPORT .......c.ocvcveveninessiasisssnmseesesssesssasmesesses 15
PAYMENT TERMS..........ccooriticrcriricnitistsistiesne s ansn s seresasessasasassssast st essarensssssnssssassnssnonsessanse 16
AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED — INTEGRATION SERVICES ..........c.ccevieeveceieceece s 17
INTEGRATED SYSTEMS TERMS & CONDITIONS.......coooviiiiiiiiieiie e srsis s 18
APPENDIX A: 360° SERVICE™ PLAN ..........ccccecrmtrmsanrensssasesesersareemsesessesssssssessnssssssssssesssssns 20

© Avidex Industries, LLC. This proposal is the property of Avidex. Avidex and the Avidex logo are the property of Avidex Industries, LLC. This
document cantains proprietary data and concepts that are the property of Avidex Industnes, LLC, Information, details, and/or specific data may not be
reproduced or duplicated,

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 2 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123)

Avidex Project # 100240364

City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste7 O



Docusign Envelope 1D: 3F4689C7-E2B80-485D-B812-7F5696ECOD4A

For the purposes of this proposal, Avidex Industries, LLC will be referred to as “Avidex” and City
Of Grandview shall be referred to as “Client.”

INTRODUCTION

Avidex is passionate about delivering collaborative audiovisual solutions that improve the way
we work, learn, and live. Avidex delivers innovative audiovisual and unified communication
solutions that enable organizations to collaborate, create, and share ideas with technology
solutions that are user-friendly, scalable, and serviceable. As a global AV integrator, Avidex
creates unparalleled client experiences from strategic planning and system design through
deployment, training, and managed services/support. Avidex is a PSNI Global Alliance affiliate,
one of the top 10 largest AV integrators in the U.S., and is a subsidiary of ITOCHU International,
Inc., a Fortune Global 500 corporation.

JOBSITE ADDRESS

Services will be delivered at 812 Wallace Way, Grandview, WA 98930

+ Yakima Valley Fair & Rodeo
o Stage
o Pavilion

SCOPE

Overview

City of Grandview would like to add audio integration to the Pavilion and Stage areas of the
outdoor community space. Avidex proposes a full range audio system suitable for concert level
audio reinforcement at the Stage area as well as a smaller distributed system for background
music and announcements for the Pavilion.

Main Stage

¢ Sound System Components
o Sound System is comprised of Qty. (2) Column Array Speakers with Low
frequency extension cabinets and Qty. (1) Dual-18" Subwoofer. Units will mount
directly to the roof support poles and large front beam.
o Features wide coverage and smooth volume transitions to rear of coverage
space as detailed in the images attached.
o Systems Operation
o Aninput plate at the rear wall of the stage will be the primary interface plate for
input connections.

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC k| November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123}

Avidex Project # 100240364

City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste7 1



Docusign Envelope ID; 3F4689C7-E2B0-4850-B812-7F5696ECOD4A

o Qty. (6) XLR-F mic/iine inputs will facilitate small act compatibility, basic mixing
functions will be available for these inputs in an easy-to-use interface.

o Qty. (3) XLR-M will facilitate external mixer integration. An act may bring their
own audio mixer to accommodate larger acts. Note that all supporting equipment
is intended to be provided by said act; on-stage monitoring, microphones, stands,
etc.

o Qty. (1) 10-inch touchscreen, all-weather display will be the method and location
of system control. The touchscreen will allow power on, power off, basic mixing
capabilities for the six inputs, Bluetooth connection, and system mode selections.

¢ Simple Operation

o An in-wall microphone will be available for announcements when no other
equipment is necessary.

o Bluetooth will be available for simple music playback on the system.

Pavilion

e Sound System Components
o Qty. (6) 70V speakers will be mounted to the pavilion area, Qty. (3) to the ceiling,
and Qty. (3) to the east roof poles to cover the east lawn.
o Qty. (1) 10-inch touchscreen for simple systems control.
¢ Systems Operation
o Touchscreen controller will control on/ off states, provide simple volume control
for in-wall mounted microphone, and Bluetooth connection for background music.

Stage and Pavilion

« DSP
o Systems will run off a single DSP (Digital Signal Processor) and controller
located at the Stage.
o Systems will be linked via a wireless point-to-point bridge for shared data,
control, and audio sources.
o Avidex will work with City of Grandview personne! to develop an access system
for the members of the public who will be utilizing these systems.
e Infrastructure
o Qty. (2) climate-controlled equipment racks will be located at each system area
within the restricted access portion of the buildings. These racks will house AV
equipment and be accessible to city personnel.
o Power for AV racks will be the responsibility of Owner/ Cthers.

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 4 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 - rev 013123)

Avidex Project # 100240364

City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste7 2



Docusign Envelope [D: 3F4689C7-E2B0-4850-B812-7F5696ECOD4A

O ACOUSTIC CALCULATIONS

Main Stage Audio Calculations

Group B Dorsct SPL Awaghted Prd 1pecinm £0-200 21

Grovs B Drves SPL A wasghted FFimir apecaem & T0% K1)
L L - | = 1 1

O AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 5 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123)

Avidex Project # 100240364

City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste



Docusign Envelope ID: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7F5606ECOD4A

( GRAPHIC EXAMPLE

Y

P S e ey

SCHEDULE

Avidex will develop a work schedule with Client that meets the implementation requirements of
the project based upon equipment, resource, and rcom availability.

Actual delivery and installation schedules will be finalized and subsequently confirmed after
receipt of a purchase order and mobilization payment (if required).

Equipment delivery is subject to change by manufacturers' supply and freight carriers. Avidex
will provide schedule updates to Client through completion.

f AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 4] November 27, 2024
b Confidential (FORM 16.7 - rev 013123)

Avidex Project # 100240364

City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste



Docusign Envelope ID: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-8812-7F5686ECOD4A

PRICING
EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS $65,080.63
MANUFACTURER EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE $513.00

TECHNICAL SERVICES - includes audiovisual engineering, offsite and

on-site installation and wiring, coordination and supervision, testing,

checkout, owner training and New System Warranty. Warranty in $94,537.41
accordance with DES contract #03418 published rates. This proposal

includes non-union labor for all activities.

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE $1,602.00
360° SERVICE PLAN - 1 Year Essential Plan $5,760.00
PROJECT SUBTOTAL $167,493.04
SHIPPING ESTIMATE - Applicable shipping charges will be added to
I $0.00
invoices
SALES TAX ESTIMATE Applicable sales tax will be added to invoices $14.571.89
based on current tax rates on the invoice date as required by state law T
ESTIMATED PROJECT TOTAL $182,064.93
PAYMENT & PERFORMANCE BOND - Not included in above totals $0.00
EXTENDED PROJECT TOTAL WITH BOND $182,064.93
AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 7 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 —rev 013123)
Avidex Project # 100240364
City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste7 5



Docusign Envelope ID: 3F4689C7-E2B0-4850-B812-7F5696ECDD4A

WASHINGTON STATE DES CONTRACT OPTION

State of Washington Department of Enterprise Services Master Contract No. 03418

https.//apps.des.wa.gov/contracting/03418%20Master%20Contract%20Avidex.pdf?chb=1211201
9.1576111682634

Avidex is proud to be a Washington State Department of Enterprise Services (DES), awarded
vendor. The Audio-Visual (AV) Solution Master Contract {Contract #03418) includes general AV
equipment and control panels, AV room design/consultation, installation services, ongoing
support, AV management services, governmental function related audio recording, induction
loop hearing systems, and other AV related accessibility solutions.

Statewide master contracts for goods and services are designed to make it easier for state
agencies, local and tribal governments, public school districts and colleges, and nonprofit
organizations throughout Washington to focus on their missions. Our statewide contracts have
met state requirements for competitive bidding and other procurement laws, reducing risk and
streamlining the purchasing process for our agency customers. Let us bring our public sector
expertise to your next audiovisual project.

Benefits to You

* Master contracts leverage the state's collective buying power for competitive and pre-
negotiated pricing

» Built-in compliance to master contract procurement requirements

» Streamlined procurement process, reducing the need to solicit competitive bids for AV
projects

* Reduce risk by working with vetted, trusted, and awarded contractor partners

» Avidex solutions are backed by our standard Warranty and 360° Service™ Solutions to
support diverse audiovisual solutions

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 8 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123)

Avidex Project # 100240364

City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste7 6



Docusign Envelope |D: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7FS696ECOD4A

TECHNICAL SERVICES

The integration process incorporates everything needed to provide a complete, turnkey
audiovisual solution and includes equipment, materials, labor, and the services required to
complete the system integration as proposed within this document.

Avidex follows industry-certified and documented processes to ensure that each system is
installed as intended.

The following describes the scope of work and project deliverables for Technical Services.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

» Responsible for Client communication throughout the project duration
» Coordinate all activities with designated Client representative(s)
» Avidex will participate in meetings as required to complete the project and coordinate with
other trades. Attendance at weekly coordination meetings are not included in this agreement
» Monitor project implementation through completion
* Provide scheduling for and oversight of Avidex personnel
¢ Coordinate equipment ordering, staging and pre-installation fabrication of equipment for the
project
e Coordinate any site conditions that may necessitate audiovisual system changes
» Coordinate with any general contractor and/or any specialty contractors related to the
audiovisual system integration
e Coordinate audiovisual system connections and interfaces as they relate to any data
network, lighting, electrical, or mechanical systems
* Verify project completion
o Confirm completion of system testing
o Ensure completion of any punch list items

ENGINEERING

e Prepare all system documentation necessary for the installation of the project.
o System functional diagrams
o Facilities drawings (equipment locations)
o Control system program requirements
¢ Detail Client's network requirements for system to operate as described and designed
e Test and debug system
» Oversee final systems testing and commissioning
e Adjust and balance system settings
+ Mark and record final system settings
* Ensure the finished system meets the design criteria and functions per the developed
content
AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 9 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123)

Avidex Project # 100240364
City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Sys|e7 7



Docusign Envelope ID: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7F5696ECOD4A

CONTROL SYSTEM PROGRAMMING

e Create AV control system code

e Design and create user interface (Ul}

¢ The user interface will be built upon a standard Ul style and standard buttons with minor
adjustments of wording, logos, and background color. Two planning meetings for Ul review
are included: one for preliminary layout selection, review of recommended U! language,
logos, branding guidelines and the second for final text review and edit

* Test and debug control system

INTEGRATION LABOR

e Pull, terminate, and label all low voitage cables

e Install structural mounting systems for all audio-visual equipment
e Mount and teminate all AV connection plates

e Install all AV equipment

¢ Site clean-up and trash disposal

* Assure that all installed systems are operating as proposed

» Assist engineering with systems testing and debugging

* Provide or assist in providing end-user training

TRAINING & DOCUMENTATION

Training will be provided to operational and maintenance personnel at the end of the project.
This training will provide Client with an understanding of daily system use. The provided training
will consist of instruction and hands-on experience with the system.

Documentation will include record drawings and manufacturer's equipment manuals. These will
be assembled and delivered as an electronic copy. The documentation will include any and all
information provided to Avidex that comes standard with the equipment from the original
manufacturer.

Maintenance manuals for most electronic components are only available to manufacturer-
certified and trained personnel. Maintenance manuals are not included in final documentation.

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 10 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123)

Avidex Project # 100240364

City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Sysle7 8



Docusign Envelope ID: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7F5696ECOD4A

PROVISIONS

* Rooms are to be made available for exclusive use on the day(s) of the scheduled
installation. Unless specifically arranged in advance, the room(s) will be available during
Normal Business Hours in eight (8) contiguous hour segments. “Normal Business Hours"
are defined as Monday through Friday, 8:00am to 5:00pm local time.

¢ Client will provide all electrical outlets floor boxes, conduits, and core drills in the area(s)
where audiovisual equipment is to be installed as coordinated with Avidex prior to Avidex
beginning on-site work.

¢ Jobsite building structures including ceilings, walls, and floors used to support audiovisual
equipment are assumed to be vibration free.

¢ Client will provide adequate parking for vehicle(s) in a location conducive to vehicle access
for retrieval of tools and supplies throughout the workday. If such parking is within a secured
facility, Client will validate the parking tickets for the vehicle(s). Parking fees will be added to
invoices.

e Ifinstallation occurs in any room in which suspended ceiling tiles are installed, Client will
provide a reasonable number of spare tiles of the same pattern and batch number as those
of the tiles already installed in the room.

* Client accepts responsibility for all merchandise sold and provided for this installation, delivered
to the job site. Client will provide secure storage for such merchandise. If Client cannot
provide a secure storage space, Avidex will work with Client to identify and mutually agree
upon a suitable solution. Avidex wiil not be responsible for any loss or damage, except loss
or damage caused by an Avidex employee during the act of installation, which occurs after
delivery and acceptance by Client.

¢ Existing hardware, wiring, programming, or configuration files are anticipated to be in good
working order. Client shall provide programming and configuration files in editable formats.
If, during the installation process, existing hardware, wiring, programming or configuration
are found to be defective, the completion date of the project may be affected, and a change
order may be required to overcome the obstacle(s) created by such defects.

* Client shall identify the presence of any pre- or post-tensioned ceilings or floors within the
area of installation. If Avidex is to be held responsible for the integrity of such pre- or post-
tensioned ceilings or floors, Avidex shall obtain, at Client’s expense, one or more x-rays of
the area(s) in which mounting hardware is to be attached to the structure of the building.
Any expense incurred for x-rays shall be passed on to the Client, in the form of a change
order or a line item on the purchase contract.

e Any standard merchandise that has been ordered for the job, is not used as a result of any
customer changes to the design, or is refused by Client at the time of delivery will be subject
to a minimum of 30% of the sales price restocking fees, plus any incurred freight charges.
Any custom merchandise will be subject to 100% of the sales price restocking fee, plus any
incurred freight.

¢ The agreed completion date may be moved, and a change order with incurred costs may be
provided if Avidex is delayed for any of the following reasons, including but not limited to,
equipment/material changes initiated by Client beyond the original approved design, labor
disputes, delivery or construction delays, unavoidable casualties, or causes beyond Avidex's

control.
AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 1 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123)
Avidex Project # 100240364
City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste7 9



Daocusign Envelope ID: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7F5696EC0D4A

s Avidex's proposals for installation costs are based upon 8-hour days and 40-hour work
weeks, Monday through Friday, in site work hours, typically between the hours of 8:00AM
and 5:00PM local time. Installation costs for work outside of normal business hours or
business days may be subject to overtime rates, when mutually agreed in writing.

* Avidex shall make all reasonable efforts to inspect and review the existing project site
physical and audiovisual infrastructure conditions. Existing site conditions needing to remain
intact, along with the Client or End-User direction for the audiovisual design may result in
other required audiovisual infrastructure requirements (raceways, conduit, AC power,
structural backing-blocking, structural engineer stamped drawings, etc.) and/or changes to
the audiovisual equipment and integration labor, leading to pricing adjustments.

¢ Freight fees are estimated for ground freight service. Expedited freight, as required by the
Client, will be prepaid and added to invoices.

e The pricing information provided in this proposal is solely for the benefit of the Client listed
on the title page. Award of work to Avidex by a 3" party will require a review of credit and
contract terms, and approval and pricing confirmation for the new contract terms by Avidex.

¢ The Client will fumnish Avidex such financial information as Avidex may reasonably request
to establish credit terms for the project. Such financial information shall remain proprietary
and confidential to the Client. Avidex agrees not to disclose this information to any other
party or use the information other than for the credit check. Avidex may, at its sole
discretion, cancel this agreement at any time if the Client fails to meet credit requirements
established by Avidex.

= The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and California Building Code require the provision
of Assistive Listening Systems in assembly areas, conference rooms, and meeting rooms.
Hardware and services may be required for ADA-compliance. Client or its contractor should
review project requirements for ALS with Avidex for each project to determine if portable or
fixed systems are required. ALS hardware, if provided, will be identified in the Equipment
List appendix.

¢ \Where applicable, Avidex Industries LLC provides the Client non-exclusive, royalty-free,
non-transferable use of the ‘software’ included within the systems provided (if an integral
component of the audiovisual system). Some software provided is Proprietary and deemed
Confidential information of Avidex Industries LLC and may not be altered, reused, reverse-
engineered or disseminated under any conditions. Tampering or misuse of any software
resulting in audiovisual systems malfunction shall be the responsibility of the Client or End-
User to remedy.

e Changes in project scope and timeline may require additional hardware, equipment and
labor that is necessary to complete the project. These additions will be considered change
orders. Avidex will notify the Client in writing if Avidex determines that an increase or
decrease in the project fees or change in timeline will be required. Change orders will
include a change request number, reason for the change request, narrative description of
the modified scope of work, schedule, and cost impact. The Client will provide written
approval to proceed with the change and any needed updated purchase order or signed
agreement as a record for both organizations. Should the Client cancel the project in whole
or in part prior to completion, the Client agrees to pay Avidex for all reasonabie costs
incurred to date and/or to bring the project to an acceptable close.

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 12 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 - rev 013123)

Avidex Project # 100240364

City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Sysler8 O



Docusign Envelope ID: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7F5686ECOD4A

WORK & PRODUCTS PROVIDED BY OTHERS (EXCLUSIONS)

All required architectural floor, reflected ceiling, building elevation, and section plans in an
agreed upon AutoCAD format at no charge to Avidex.

Any and all related electrical work, including but not limited to 110VAC, conduit, raceway,
and boxes. This includes all conduits, high voltage wiring panels, breakers, relays, boxes,
receptacles, etc.

All network connectivity, routing, switching and port configuration necessary to support
audiovisual equipment, unless specifically addressed elsewhere in this document.

Voice and data infrastructure and systems.
Necessary sheet rock replacement and or repair.
Necessary ceiling tile or T-bar modifications, replacement, and/or repair.

Al millwork, moldings, trim, etc., or modifications to project millwork necessary to
accommodate the installation of the audiovisual equipment unless otherwise noted in this
proposal.

Rough-in, bracing, framing, or finish trim carpentry for installation.

Backing required to support wall-mounted equipment including displays, loudspeakers,
cameras, etc.

Painting, patching, or finishing of architectural surfaces.

Core drilling and/or concrete saw cutting.

HVAC, plumbing, sprinkler head, and lighting fixture relocation.
Ceiling, roof, firewall, and/or floor penetration(s).

Removal or patching, of fire stopping.

Structural welding, cutting, or reinforcement of structural steel members required for support
of assemblies.

Work in asbestos-treated areas and asbestos abatement. If asbestos is discovered during
our work, Avidex will notify Client and will stop work until asbestos abatement work is
completed by Client or its contractor.

Any subscription services, cabling, and equipment.

Provision and configuration of Client-furnished computers and software.
Acquisition of permits.

All Union Labor unless specifically addressed separately in proposal pricing.

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 13 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123}

Avidex Project # 100240364
City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste8 1



Docusign Envelope |D: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7F5696ECOD4A

NEW SYSTEM WARRANTY

Avidex warrants the integrated system(s) furnished are free of defects in workmanship and
materials for a period of one year from the date of acceptance or date of first beneficial use,
whichever occurs first. Remedy for such defects during the warranty period shali be provided at
no additional expense to the client and shall be handled as expeditiously as is feasible during
normal business hours and days of operation.

Under this warranty, Avidex will troubleshoot, uninstall, and reinstall any equipment that is part
of the Avidex audiovisual system. The cost to service and/or repair Client Furnished Equipment
or equipment out of the manufacturer's warranty is not included. Avidex will broker and process
the repair of that equipment at the standard Avidex rate.

Avidex reserves the right to charge for a service visit at standard Avidex service time and
material rates (minimum of 2 hours onsite plus travel) if a service call results in a No Fault
Found (NFF) or No Trouble Found (NTF) during a dispatched site visit.

Avidex Services Provided Under the New System Warranty

e Avidex will respond to requests for assistance due to client-reported issues and, if
warranted, dispatch a technician during normal business hours (8:00AM to 5:00PM Pacific
Time, Monday — Friday, excluding Avidex holidays) to troubleshoot the AV system problem
based on our available resources

» Avidex will use cloud-based monitoring to assist with and facilitate incident resolution, where
applicable.

¢ Avidex will identify and uninstall the defective equipment and return such equipment to the
manufacturer or authorized repair center for warranty processing.

« Avidex will reinstail the repaired or replaced equipment and test the system.

 Avidex will pay the shipping costs associated with the repair of the equipment, except for
Client Furnished Equipment and/or equipment out of manufacturer warranty.

Avidex Services Not Provided Under the New System Warranty

« Extend or provide additional repair services for manufacturer warranty coverage.
* Repair of Client Furnished Equipment.
» After hours 24x7 Helpdesk support.
+ Guaranteed on-site response time.
+ Remote system reporting, or the sharing of system performance data.
+ Before- or after-hours on-site response.
« Proactive support or preventive maintenance.
e Training.
« Spare or loaner equipment during equipment repair period.
» Warranty coverage for client acts of negligence or misuse.
AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 14 November 27, 2024
Confidential {FORM 16,7 — rev 013123)
Avidex Project # 100240364
City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste8 2



Docusign Envelope 1D: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-BB12-7F5696ECOD4A

360° SERVICE™ MANAGED SERVICES & SUPPORT

Avidex recommends the Essential 360° Service for this project. Avidex 360° Service
enhances the new systems warranty coverage with proactive support services for worry-

'SERVICE

free operation. See Appendix A for further details on the proposed 360° Service Plan.

360° Coverage

Essential

Advanced

Elite

Call Center Availability

Bx5*

24x7

24x7

Technical Support Availability

8x5*

8x5*

24x7

Call Response Time SLA

4 hours*

2 hours*

1 hour*

On-Site Response Time SLA

3 business days

2 business days

1 business day

Repair or Replacement of Defective Hardware within
Manufacturer Warranty

®

Repair or Replacement of Defective Hardware out of
Manufacturer Warranty*™

Annual Preventative Maintenance & Report (to be

scheduled by Client)

One

One

On-Site Service Assurance Technician

Optional

Optional

Optional

Expedited advance replacement of critical devices

(subject to product availability and additional fees).

The below items require internet access for the AV system reporting agent software. This requires the
implementation of hardware and software applications. The proposed scope of work should confirm if these
features have been included and are therefore supported.

Remote Monitoring with Fault Detection . . .
Remote Monitoring with Fault Detection, Reporting, & . .
Troubleshooting

AV Solution Analytics & Reporting . .
Management of Device Configurations & Changes .

* Standard Business Hours in Local Time
** Excluding end of lifa (EOL) products as determined by the manufacturer. Other product exclusions may apply as
defermined by Avidex and specified in writing as Appendix B to the 360° Service Plan agreement.

Initial Term, Multiyear Pricing, and Automatic Renewal

The initial term of the specified 360° Service Plan Agreement is identified in the pricing section. For
multiyear service agreements, Avidex reserves the right to increase the service price annually, not to
exceed 4%,

Unless written termination is requested by either party thirty (30) days in advance of the anniversary
expiration date of the current 360° Service Plan term, the Agreement between the parties shall
automatically renew for successive one (1) year periods. Written termination requests by the client should
be sent to: Attn. Contract Admin 8509 154th Ave NE, Ste 100 Redmond, WA 98052

At any time within the current term or renewal period, should adjustments in service level responsibilities
and price be deemed necessary, proposal and agreement revisions shall be exchanged between the
parties, be mutually agreed upon in writing, and once executed, become part of the current Agreement or
understanding between the parties.

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 15
Confidential (FORM 16.7 —rev 013123)

November 27, 2024

Avidex Project # 100240364
City Of Grandview
Stage Pavilion Audio Syste



Docusign Envelope ID: 3F4688C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7F5696ECOD4A

PAYMENT TERMS

This proposal is valid for 20 days from the date appearing on the cover page.

+ Monthly progress invoices will be issued with net 30-day terms.

¢ The 360° Service Plan will be invoiced annually, in advance or at the date of commencement.
Freight and sales tax will be added to invoices based on current tax rates as required by state law on
the invoice date.

s Avidex reserves the right to charge for stored materials and/or equipment.
Avidex reserves the right to charge a 1.5% fee for late payment of invoices.

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 16 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123)
Avidex Project # 100240364

City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste8 1



Docusign Envelope ID: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7F5696ECOD4A

AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED - INTEGRATION SERVICES

Avidex will proceed with the proposed work following receipt of Client's purchase order referring
to this proposal, a co-signed contract referring to this proposal, or the signed proposal.

O |, the client, elect to decline Remote Monitoring. By checking this box, | understand that
Avidex will not have the ability to remotely or actively monitor my audiovisual system.

O |, the client, elect to decline the 360° Service Plan offering. By checking this box, |
understand that | am declining the proposed service and support coverage for my audiovisual
system.

Submitted by: Avidex Industries, LLC

11/27/2024
Name Signature Date
Client Approval:
Client Name/Title Signature Date
Internal Avidex Approval:
Name Signature Date

Each party agrees thal any electronic signatures above, whether digital or encrypted. of the parties included in this Agreement are intended to
authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect as manual signatures. Delivery of an executed signature page lo this Agreement by e-
mail attachment, other means of electronic transmission with authorization to attach it to this Agreement, or any other means of electronic transmission
used lo obtain an electronic signature shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy

Attachments:
Integrated Systems Terms & Conditions

Appendix A - Support Agreement

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 17 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123)
Avidex Project # 100240364
City Of Grandview
Stage Pavilion Audio Syste



Docusign Envelope |D: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7F5686ECOD4A

INTEGRATED SYSTEMS TERMS & CONDITIONS

1. AGREEMENT SUM AND TAXES AND CREDIT APPROVAL

The client shall pay Avidex in current US dollars for performance of the work within this agreement, and for any additions or
deductions that are mutually agreed upon by written change of order. Avidex will invoice the Client for all imposed and
applicable sales, excise andfor use taxes associated with the sale of goods andfor services. All proposals and guotations
are subject to final credit approval and documentation acceptable to Avidex.

2. PAYMENT TERMS

Avidex will submit invoices for work performed based upon the payment terms mutually agree upon presented on the
signature page. Unless otherwise provided, Avidex will invoice for malerials and equipment not yet incorporated into the
project work but delivered and suitably stored on or off the project worksite, upon which Avidex assigns, transfers title to,
and conveys said materials and equipment to the Client. Stored material invoices shall include applicable insurance fees,
storage fees, and costs incurred transporting the materials to an off-sile storage facility.

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS

Title and risk of loss or damage to any products will pass to the client upon Avidex's delivery of the products to the client.
Client must make all claims for damage to or loss of products directly with their insurer or with the equipment carner, if
applicable. Client should be aware of carrier policies and file all claims in a limely manner.

4. CLIENT

Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of Avidex, under the Request for Proposal, the client shall secure and
pay for necessary approvals, assessments, and charges required for the construction, use or occupancy of permanent
structures or permanent changes in existing facilities.

5. RESPONSIBILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION

Avidex shali be responsible to the client for the acts and omissions of Avidex's employess and subcontractors, if any,
performing portions of the work under this agreement, Avidex employees understand that they have no right to enter into
agresments with or make representation on behalf of the client, Avidex shall review, approve, and submit to the project
manager shop drawings, product data, samples, and similar submittals as required, for writien approval prior to the
commencement of the work. The work shall be in accordance with approved submittas, To the fullest extent permitted by
law, Avidex shall indemnify and hold harmless the client, its project manager, its employees, officers, agents and directors
from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to, altorney's fees arising out of or
resulting from performance of the work, provided that such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to failure to deliver
clear tille to the client, bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury 1o or destruction of tangible property (cther than
the work itself), including loss of use resulting there from, but only to the extent caused in whole or in part by negligent or
intentional acts or omissions of Avidex or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Avidex or anyone for whose acts Avidex
may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claims, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified
hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negale, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity that
would otherwise exist as to a party or person. In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this paragraph by an
employee of Avidex, anyone directly or indirectly empioyed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the
indemnification obligation under this paragraph shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages,
compensation or benefits payable by or for Avidex or under workers’ or workmen's compensation acts, disability benefit acts
or other employee benefit acts.

6. INSURANCE

Avidex shall purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized to do business in the jurisdiction in
which the project is located insurance for protection from claims under workers' or workmen's compensation acts and other
employee benefit acts which are applicable, claims for damages because of bodily injury, including death, and from claims
for damages, other than to the work itself, to property which may arise out of or result from Avidex operaticns under the
agreement. Certificates of such insurance shall be filed with the client prior ta the commencement of the work. Client shall
be responsible for purchasing and maintaining its usual property and liability insurance.

7. TIME

Should Avidex be delayed at any time in the progress of the work, by material changes ordered in the work, by labor
disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, construction delays, unavoidable casualties or causes beyond Avidex's control,
the agreed upon time for completion shall be extended by Change Order for such reasonable time as the Client's project
manager may delermine. Such Changes Orders may include charges to cover additional costs incured by Avidex due to the
delay. Installation costs for work cutside of normal business hours or business days may be subject to overtime rates, when
mutually agreed upon in writing. Project timeline and complation schedules will not begin until depasit or initial paymentis
received by Avidex.

8. AFTER HOURS INSTALLATION / EARLY USE

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 18 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123)

Avidex Project # 100240364

City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste



Docusign Envelope 1D; 3F4689C7-E2R0-4850-B812-7F5696ECOD4A

With prior Client approval and security clearance, installation activity and access to the project site may take place outside of
normal business hours and days. There should be no use of the system by the client for its intended purpose until such time
as formal approval and acceptance has taken place. Avidex may waive this requirement only with a written authorization.
Any operations or changes by the client or contractors other than Avidex, which result in damage or impairment of the
system and may require a change order and additional charges to the client. The attached proposal and/or quote was based
upon site surveys and verbal information from the client. While every effort has been made to determine installation
conditions, on occasion unforeseen problems may arise that will require a change order to cover additional costs by Avidex.

9. INTERNET ACCESS

Avidex requires secure intemet access to installed AV systems for the express purpose of remote monitoring and
management of the AV hardware. Such access will provide the capability of restorative actions to remedy disruptive
incidents, and assure systems are in an operational state.

10. PRODUCT SUBSTITUTION

Avidex may, at its sole discretion, substitute products included in the system design with those providing similar product
form, fit and function as the original products. Product substitutions may occur due to changes to product availabiiity,
extensions or delays to estimaled or committed delivery, product price increases, regulatory restrictions, or any other factors
as determined by Avidex. Any substituted product designs will achieve the functional and end user experience reguirements
of the system design.

11. CHANGES/CANCELLATION

Any changes or modifications to the agreed upon scope of work defined in this proposal must be mutually agreed upon in
writing. All changes shall be submitted and approved in writing and documented in a change order. Should the Client in
whole cancet a project or in part, prior to final completion, the Client agrees to pay Avidex for all reascnable costs incurred to
dale and/or to bring the project to an acceptable close. These costs include but are not limited to: the design and
engineering services; project management; the installation and programming technical labor; the subcontracting costs; the
materials and equipment costs incurred to date; and other miscellaneous documented costs. Materials and equipment are
also subject to restocking charge policy.

12. WAIVER

Either party’s waiver of the other's default in its obligations under any terms or conditions of this agreement will not in any
way limit or affect that party's right to enforce and compel strict compliance with that term or condilion at any other time or
with any other term or condition.

13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This agreement and appendices to this agreement, including the RFP as reference herein, supersede, terminate and
otherwise void any and all prior written and/for oral agreement between the parties with respect to products. There are no
warranties, representations or understandings of any kind or description whalsoever made by either party to the other,
except such as are expressly set forth herein. Any additional terms or notes appearing on scheduies, proposal summaries
and/or Change Order are by this reference incorporated in this agreement.

14. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

Without limitation of any other provision in this agreement limiting or excluding liability of Avidex the exclusive damages
recoverable by the purchaser for any claim of any kind whatsoever arising from or in any way connected to any breach of
this agreement, or the purchaser's purchase shall not be greater than the actual purchase price paid by the purchaser with
respect to which such claim is made, and in no event shall Avidex be liable for any special, indirect, incidental or
consequential damages of any kind, including without limitation any damages with respect to loss of income, compensation
or prospective profits, any expendilures, investments or commilments of the purchaser, any loss with respect to the
establishment, development or maintenance of business reputation or goodwill, or any loss incurred in obtaining substitute
products, or arising from the claims of third parties.

15. GENERAL

During the performance of this Agreement, the contractorfvendor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local
laws of any nature whatsoever in connection with the goods and services provided including, but not limited, to, applicable
provisions of E.O. 11246, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Vietnam Era Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, E.Q
13496 and respective regulations including 29 C.F.R. 471 Appendix A to Subpart A, and the EEQ Clauses set forth in 41
C.F.R 60-1.4, 41 C.F R, 60-300.5 and 41 n. cont. C.F.R. 60-741.5 This contractor and subcontractor shall abide by the
requirements of 41 CFR §§ 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5{a). These regulations prohibit discrimination against
qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities and prohibit
discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or
national origin. Moreover, thase regulations require that covered prime contractors and subcontractors take
affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals without regard to race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, protected veteran status or disability.

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 19 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 18.7 — rev 013123)

Avidex Project # 100240364

City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste



Docusign Envelope ID: 3F4689C7-E280-485D-B812-7F5696ECOD4A

APPENDIX A: 360° SERVICE™ PLAN

ESSENTIAL (INCLUDED AND PRICED)

Under Essential coverage, Avidex warrants the furnished integrated system(s) are free of defects for the
priced term period from the date of acceptance or date of first beneficial use, whichever occurs first. This
coverage includes the remote monitering, troubleshooting, removal, and reinstallation of the equipment
integrated by Avidex. Remedy for such defects during the coverage period shail be provided at no
additiona! expense to the client. The following services are included under this coverage:

REACTIVE SUPPORT

Avidex 360° Service Helpdesk will:

» Provide a dedicated toll-free number (1-800-497-7104) to report and request technical support for the
integrated equipment.

* Operate during standard Avidex business hours of Monday - Friday 8:00AM to 5:00PM Local Time
except for Avidex holidays.
Respond to the initial support request within four {(4) business hours.
Contact the client to resolve the issue remotely to ensure the quickest possible resolution

¢ Use the integrated remote monitoring equipment to assist with fault detection and sending alerts,
dependent upon the specific scope of the proposed project.

» Use of the integrated remote management system to facilitate diagnostic and/or restorative actions to
resolve the reported problem, where applicable.

¢ Administer the repair process for defective or broken equipment including processing of any
manufacturer RMA,

On-Site Support will:

» Provide a qualified Field Support Technician during standard Avidex working hours within three
business days of the support request.
Troubleshoot the system and make the best effort to resolve the issue(s) while at the client site.
Return defective equipment to an authorized repair center or directly to the manufacturer for warranty
repair or exchange. All fees related to shipping are included.

¢ Install the repaired or replacement equipment and test to ensure the system is operable per the
original system intent. Re-installation will be quoted for product(s) whose manufacturer’s status is End
of Life.

Lamp Replacement:
e Labor (only) is covered under this support agreement.

PROACTIVE SUPPORT

In those cases where system design allows, Avidex Assure remote management of AV systems is an
integral part of this support agreement. Remote monitoring and management are features designed into
AV solutions allowing the systems to report issues at any time. The systems provide real-time information
about equipment status and health.

The goal of utilizing remote monitoring and management is to reduce the time to resolution for every
reported AV system problem.

Remote Monitoring

Alerts are generated in real time. The systemys) provide regular updates for health and operational
status, and notification alerts are directed to the cloud as they occur. These alerts are conveyed to

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 20 November 27, 2024
Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123)

Avidex Project # 100240364

City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Syste/8 8



Docusign Envelope [D: 3F4689C7-E2B0-485D-B812-7F5696ECOD4A

Avidex remote technical support staff. Based on the level of support agreement, Avidex will assess
the alert and log into the system for added information about the reported issue. From that early
assessment, the Avidex service team will then act on the issue according to our service process.

Remote Management

Avidex remote technical support staff will work with the system to resolve the reported problem. If the
issue can be resolved by any of the available remote tools, the technician will do so, log the issue and
the resolution. The incident is included in Avidex reporting to our client. Should the reported problem
not be resolved using remote toals, the problem is logged, and a technician is scheduled and
dispatched to resolve the issue on-site. The dispatched technician is pre-armed with the knowledge
from the on-line support exchange with the system. This means that the dispatched technician is
prepared to resolve the reported issue as quickly as possible.

SERVICES NOT PROVIDED UNDER THIS COVERAGE

* Repair to Client Furnished Equipment and/or components unless included in Appendix B.

¢ Before or after-hours on-site support.

* Repairs due to customer acts of negligence or misuse.

» Coverage for projection screen material, plasma giass assembly, lamps, bulbs, furniture, display
panels, optical engines, batteries, and accessories. Such parts will be provided at a 10% discount off
our list price.

+ Image burn-in.

AVIDEX INDUSTRIES, LLC 21 November 27, 2024

Confidential (FORM 16.7 — rev 013123)

Avidex Project # 100240364
City Of Grandview

Stage Pavilion Audio Sysl38 9



